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Corporate Information
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I would like to present to the shareholders the audited consolidated
results of Hoifu Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, the Group recorded the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$11.6
million as compared to the loss attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$4.6 million for the financial year 2016.

2017 was a year of opportunities and challenges. During the year
under review, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire the entire issued share capital of New Guangdong
Merchants Investment Holding Group Limited which owns the land
use rights of lands located in Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang Economic
and Technological Development Zone, Zhanjiang City, Guandong
Province, the PRC. It has been the Company’s business strategy to
make investments in development projects with economic growth
potential so as to expand its revenue source, improve its profitability
and maintain a sustainable growth. The Directors are of the view that
the long-term prospect of the PRC property market is promising in
view of the PRC’s continuous economic growth, the rising early-stage
urbanization, regional development boosted by city clusters and the
continued increase in the citizens' financial capability. Accordingly,
the Group intends to expand its business into property investment
and development alongside its existing business. This transaction
was completed on 28 February 2018. Based on the growth trend in
housing price in Zhanjiang, the Company is of the view that the value
of the land will increase significantly in next year.

However, this is also the first year in which the subsidiary, Hebei
Panbao Zeolite Technology Ltd, reported a disappointed performance
of a major loss since it became a subsidiary of the Group. Fortunately,
the management had been acting swiftly by entering into a sale and
purchase agreement disposing a group of subsidiaries, including
Hebei Panbao, at premium. The transaction is still in process and
hopefully will be completed in the coming months.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand its business into
property investment and development alongside its existing energy-
related and financial services business. The Group's enlarging and
strengthening financial operation and property investment business
will benefit the Company'’s future business development beyond the
energy-related sector and is in the best interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over
the years and contributing to the Group’s healthy development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving our
business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, s, Jp
Chairman

29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue of
continuing operation amounted to approximately HK$97,065,000,
compared to approximately HK$31,329,000 for 2016, representing an
increase of approximately HK$65,736,000.

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company for 2017 amounted to approximately HK$11,664,000,
compared to the loss of approximately HK$4,621,000 for 2016.

In view of the uncertain prospect of Hebei Panbao Zeolite Technology
Co., Ltd * It BB # AR K AR 2 A]) ("Hebei Panbao”), the
Company decided to dispose 55% equity interest in Hebei Panbao. The
asset and liabilities attributable to such business have been classified
as a disposal group held for sales.

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECT
Mining and production of zeolite business

Hebei Panbao reported a disappointed performance as it did not
make any contribution for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$105,240,000).

During the year, the transfer of 45% equity interests in Hebei Panbao
to Kaifu Chuangtong United Holdings Group Limited* (sl = &l @
AR B AR A A), which was designated by Hoifu United
Group Limited (Sl & &t & S B BB A 7)), has been completed in
accordance with the amended agreement in March 2017. Following
which, the new management team had taken over the operation of
the Hebei Panbao. Unfortunately, the new management disappointed
everyone and under their inefficient supervision, the Hebei Panbao
started to incurred significant loss for the first time since it became a
subsidiary of the Group.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management iscussion and Analysis

BEETWED T

Except for partial payment of introduction fee which is amounting to
HKD30 million, Hoifu United Group Limited failed to fulfil its payment
obligations under the agreement and legal actions have been taken
by the Group on 8 November 2017 claiming for, among others, (i) the
payment of the relevant guaranteed profit; (i) interests on the said
sum; and (iii) costs.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 January
2018, as advised by Zhang Ling, the transfer of 45% equity interests in
Hebei Panbao to Kaifu Chuangtong United Holdings Group Limited*
(Il =R BB S IEREBEARAA), which was designated by Hoifu
United Group Limited (Sl =B & SEBR A F]) , has been completed
in accordance with the Amended Agreement in March 2017. Following
which, Zhang Ling only received RMB69 miillion of the agreed payment
of the equity interest transaction, and has not received the remaining
agreed payment of the equity interest transfer of RMB131 million.
After several failed attempts to collect the remaining payment, Zzhang
Ling has initiated litigation procedures to claim against (1) Hoifu United
Group Limited (8l 2B & & E AR A 7)) and its guarantors, namely
Weng Tao (£78) and Ji Hailin (&8 #k) and (2) Kaifu Chuangtong
United Holdings Group Limited* (Sl 8l BB A IEREBBR A )
and its shareholders and directors, namely Weng Tao ( 7% ) and
Ji Hailin (F&#K) , at the Zhangjiakou Intermediate People’s Court
of Hebei Province. According to the litigation procedures and the
court order, the arbitration and negotiation in relation to the agreed
payment of equity interest transaction and the termination of the
equity transfer agreement, as well as the demand for responsibility
of both parties such as the restoration of the equity interests, are in
progress by the representatives of both parties. In the event that the
representatives of both parties fail to reach a consensus within the
timeframe for arbitration as designated by the court, trial will proceed
before the court and a judgement will be made according to the laws.
As such, it is anticipated that the overall performance of Hebei Panbao
will be adversely affected.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment property

The rental income of leasing the Property covers an area of
approximately 16,360.03 sg.m. at the Rong Ning Yuan Community of
No. 60 Guang An Men Nan lJie, Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC, which
includes (i) the 1st and 2nd floor of the commercial podium of Block
2 with an area of approximately 1,323.61 sqg.m.; and (i) the car park
and storage rooms at the basement of Block 1 to Block 6 with an
area of approximately 15,036.42 sg.m.. The car park comprises of two
storey with a total of 384 parking spaces. Primely located between the
Second Ring and Third Ring in Beijing.

These rental incomes have consolidated into the Group's revenue
since the end of 2016. The tenant has agreed to lease the entire area
of the Property for a period of two years commencing from 15 June
2016 and ending on 15 June 2018 which amount to RMB28,000,000.
Beside this, pursuant to another lease agreement on advertising
signage board on the external walls of office building, the lease of the
advertising signage board will provide the additional monthly rental
income of RMB400,000 for a two-year period expiring on 15 July 2018.

Apart from the rental income, the Group recorded the unrealized
fair value gains on this investment properties of approximately
HK$130,420,000.

Oil and gas and mineral mining business

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield
Block 2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400
square kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant
to the exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing
contract and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.
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Management iscussion and Analysis

BEENWED T

The Group owns 65% interest in the rights granted under the Licence
253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056
square kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province, Kenya,
and the Licence 341 in respect of Kenya Mine 341, an area of
approximately 417 square kilometers situated in Nandi County, Kenya.
Pursuant to the Licence 253 and relevant provisions of the Mining
Act of Kenya, the Group is authorized to prospect, explore and mine
industrial minerals (including but not limited to copper) in Kenya Mine
253. The Group was also granted the Licence 341 for prospecting and
exploration of gold, iron ore and non-precious minerals in Kenya Mine
341. Both Licence 253 and 341 have renewed during the year and the
expiry dates are 14 May 2020 and 2 January 2020 respectively.

Financial Business

The performance during the year ended with positive figure mainly
attributing to the increase of turnover near the year end. The revenue
of this segment remained stable which amounted to approximately
HK$25,501,000 for 2017, compared to approximately HK$26,204,000
for 2016.

Retail participation increased only near the end of the year when
the global sentiment was boosted up by the implementation of
substantial tax cut of USA. Though the HS Index advanced upward on
the back of strong USA market, turnover concentrated on a few big
high technology stocks.

Nevertheless, the investors remained cautious on the issue of
economic development of China, the regional tensions in Asia region,
the uncertain interest rate policy of USA for the most time of the year.
Market still looks to be active across to 2018 as the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong will carry out more reforms to release the listing
restrictions to attract more big technology companies, bio-chemical
stocks and possible big companies already listed in mature overseas
markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, the Group entered into a promoters’ agreement to set up
a joint venture securities company (the “JV Securities Company”) in
Guangzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone, Nanshan area under the framework
of CEPA. The Group conditionally agreed to invest RMB350 million
in the JV Securities Company by way of subscription of 350,000,000
shares of the JV Securities Company, representing 10% equity interest
thereof for an aggregate subscription price of RMB350 million (the “JV
Investment”). The JV Investment would offer a first-starter advantage
to the Company to access to the huge and fast-growing financial
markets in the PRC. The setup of the JV securities Company is subject
to the approval of China Securities Regulatory Commission (the
“CSRC"). The formal application was made to the CSRC on 16 June
2016. The application is still being processed.

Prospect

Building on the investment strategic adjustments of 2017, the
Group will seek to expand its business into property investment
and development alongside its existing energy-related and financial
services business. The Group’s enlarging and strengthening
financial operation and property investment business will benefit
the Company's future business development beyond the energy-
related sector and is in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Management iscussion and Analysis

EREEWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the financial year, the total revenue for the Group of
continuing operation was approximately HK$97,065,000, representing
an increase of approximately HK$65,736,000 as compared with
approximately HK31,329,000 in 2016. This was mainly due to the
increase of sale natural resources and petrochemicals during the year.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$71,750,000
in 2017 from approximately HK$58,302,000 in 2016, representing a
year-on-year increase of 23%. It was due to the increase of staff cost,
office expenses as well as legal and professional fees on acquisitions
during the year.

Other gains and losses

During the year, the Group recorded unrealized fair value gain on
investment property in Beijing of approximately HK$130,420,000
(2016: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
Material acquisition

On 28 July 2017, Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the Agreement to acquire
i) the entire equity interest of the New Guangdong Merchants
Investment Holding Group Limited (the “Target”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Target Group”) and ii) the Sale Loan for a total consideration of
RMB1,100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,272,040,000),
which will be satisfied as to (a) RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$115,640,000) in cash as a refundable deposit; and
(b) RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,156,400,000)
by issue of the Convertible Note.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The major assets of the Target Group are the land use rights in four
land parcels located in Donghai Avenue, Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang
Economic and Technological Development Zone, Zhanjiang City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a total site area and total planned
gross floor area of 244,829 sq.m. and approximately 1,300,000 sg.m.
respectively.

The Target Group is wholly owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming who is the
director and controlling shareholder of the Company. The Special
General Meeting was held on 13 February 2018 for the Independent
Shareholders to consider and approve the agreement and the
transactions.

As at 28 February 2018, all conditions precedent under the
Agreement have been fulfilled and the Target has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the assets, liabilities
and financial results of the Target Group will be consolidated into the
year of 2018 financial statements of the Group.

Based on the growth trend in housing price in Zhanjiang, the Company
is of the view that the value of the land will increase significantly in
next year.

Change of the Company Name

On 13 February 2018, the Company announced to propose to change
of the Company Name from “Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited” to “Hong
Kong Finance Investment Holding Group Limited” and the adoption
of the Chinese name of "B & iz E R EE AR A 7" as the
dual foreign name of the Company in place of its existing Chinese
name "8l = 8 R £ @ A B A 7", The special resolution to approve
the change of the Company name was duly passed on 29 March 2018
by way of poll. Further announcement will be made by the Company

upon the Change of Company Name becoming effective.
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Management iscussion and Analysis

BEETWED T

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(excluding the restricted cash) were approximately HK$164,679,000
(2016: approximately HK$132,903,000).

The net current assets of the Group (without the disposal group held
for sale) were approximately HK$170,272,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$235,257,000), which consisted of current assets of approximately
HK$471,138,000 (31 December 2016: HK$669,209,000) and current
liabilities of approximately HK$300,866,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$433,952,000), representing a current ratio of approximately 1.57
(31 December 2016: 1.54).

The Group manages its capital structure to finance its overall
operation and growth by using different sources of funds. As at 31
December 2017, the Group's other borrowings and corporate bonds
amounted to approximately HK$330,317,000 (31 December 2016: Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017 (defined as
total interest-bearing liabilities divided by the Group's total equity) was
approximately 0.38 (31 December 2016: Nil).

CORPORATE BONDS

During the year, the Group has issued the Corporate Bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$21 million bearing interest rate of
7% per annum with maximum maturity to 7.5 years from the date
of issue. Such bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Imputed interest of approximately
HK$856,000 was recognised in the profit or loss during the year. (2016:
Nil). The issuance of the Corporate Bonds will not result in any dilution
on the shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly to
the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against
RMB. We have not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
such need arise.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses on
corporate bonds, term loan and other borrowings. The aggregate
amount of interest incurred was approximately HK$10,531,000 (2016:
approximately HK$6,360,000) for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has given guarantee to bank in respect of the securities
margin financing facilities granted to subsidiary. As at 31 December
2017, no such facilities were utilised by the subsidiary to facilitate daily
operation (31 December 2016: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the term loan of HKD250 million were
secured by (i) the guarantee from Guangdong Hoifu Wai Yip
Investment Management Limited (BRI EEXHEEEFR A
a)) ; (i) the personal guarantee from the Guarantor (Dr. Hui Chi Ming)
and Beijing Yinghe Property Development Limited (4t 5= & F &= b &
A B AR A ) respectively; and (i) the charge/pledge to be
granted by several subsidiaries of the Company.
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Management iscussion and Analysis

BEETWED T

On the other hand, the Group held banking facilities from various
banks as at 31 December 2017. The Group's banking facilities were
secured by guarantees given by the Group’s bank deposits and the
Company. As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$5,239,000 (31 December 2016: HK$5,229,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a subsidiary.

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$250,000,000 for a term of 36 months during the year. Pursuant
to the terms of the facility agreement, the occurrence of change of
control event constitutes an event of default which the Lender may
cancel the facility.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 293 staff
(2016: 355) of which 20 were commission based (2016: 26) and
the total related staff cost amounted to HK$29,383,000 (2016:
HK$28,438,000). The Group's long term success rests primarily on
the total integration of the company core value with the basic staff
interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus. The future
staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the performance
of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained organic
overhead expenses to support the basic operation and dynamic
expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond flexibly with
the changes of business environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 2,521,280,885 of HK$0.10 each (31 December
2016: 2,521,280,885 shares of HK$0.10 each).

APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

With effect from 1 July 2017 and 5 July 2017, Mr. Yim Kai Pung has
been appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company and Mr. Ren Qian has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Code during the financial year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is aware of the importance that complying with the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and maintaining good
corporate governance standards are important to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company. The Company has, therefore,
adopted and implemented relevant measures to ensure that the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with and
that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting period
covered by the interim report except for the deviation from code
provision A.4.2. of the Code which every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, according to Bye-
laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND SENIOR
CONSULTANT

Dr. Hatoyama Yukio, aged 71, was appointed the Honorary
Chairman and a senior consultant of the Company on 21 March
2013. With the amicable relationship with renowned global energy
groups from Japan, China and Africa, as well as the successful
experience and leadership in cooperative development and operation
of international energy projects, Dr. Hatoyama is deeply confident of
participating and guiding the Group's energy development business.

Dr. Hatoyama, first elected to the House of Representatives of Japan
in 1986. He held office as a member in the House of Representatives
for the eighth consecutive term. Hatoyama became the President
of Democratic Party of Japan, the main opposition party in Japan, in
May 2005. He then led the party to victory in the August 2009 general
election and was appointed as the 93th Prime Minister in September
2009. Dr. Hatoyama graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering from
the University of Tokyo in 1969 and received a PhD in Industrial
Engineering from Stanford University in 1976.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming a.B.s., J.p., aged 53, was appointed the Chairman
and an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company.
He is responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic
planning and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor
Honoris Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from
the Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences
in 2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy
of Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies such
as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (S E A EE AR A7),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited ( 5 i 0 &7 A0 =
H A AR A7) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (552 pn i pndt 75 A B R 2 &) . From 2004 to 2010, Dr.
Hui was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 346) and engaged in the investment, exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of the
9th, 10th, 11th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is the chairman of the Confucian
Academy of Hong Kong, a standing committee member of the All-
China Federation of Industry & Commerce, the honorable president of
the Beijing Federation of Industry & Commerce, a standing committee
member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, the president
of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited, the president of the
Hong Kong General Association of International Investment and
the chief president of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisation. Dr. Hui is also the Honorary Consul in Hong
Kong of the Republic of Madagascar. All these years, Dr. Hui has been
actively participating in promoting poverty alleviation and charity,
and he has been awarded the China Glory Society Medal for Poverty
Alleviation (F Bl Y % F ¥ 3k 8 8% ) and accredited as China Top
Ten Poverty Alleviation Contributor (2B + Xk B4k JT) by the
government of the PRC. In recognition of the outstanding contribution
of Dr. Hui to poverty alleviation, the International Minor Planet Naming
Committee (BIFR/NTEAEZ BE) approved permanently naming
the minor planet No. 5390 as “Hui Chi Ming Planet”.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 63, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics
and from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with
a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over
30 years of experience in domestic and international energy and
real estate business development. He formed oil companies which
explored oil resources in various states in the United States of
America and overseas. Mr. Bush has engaged in various international
business development activities with a focus on the PRC and Middle
East. Since 1975, Mr. Bush has traveled to the PRC over 140 times
and worked with numerous entities on a variety of projects including
real estate development, energy, automobile parts, sheet rock
manufacturing and paint production. From 7 December 2010 to 20
July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive director of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269). Since 22 April
2013, Mr. Neil Bush has been serving as the Non-Executive Chairman
on the board of SGX-ST Mainboard-listed SingHaiyi Group Limited, a
Singapore based real estate company, a Singapore based real estate
company. He is also the Chairman of the Points of Light, a national
charitable organisation formed by President George H.W. Bush in 1989
that promotes citizen service through volunteerism in communities
all across America and increasingly overseas. Mr. Bush serves as
Chairman of the Barbara Bush Houston Literacy Foundation, and on
the boards of the Houston Salvation Army and the Bush School of
Government and Public Service.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe, aged 69, was appointed as the Managing Director
and an executive director of the Group. He is responsible for overall
strategic planning and operations and in charge of the execution and
further development of the Group’s expansion plan. He has been
the executive director and general manager of Sun Hoe Company
Limited, a company engaged in medicine distribution and trading
business, since 1978. Dr. Chui is also a director of the Honourable Mr.
Tsui Sze Man (GBM) Foundation For the Development of Technology
and Education in Myanmar Ltd., since 2000. He is also a director
of the Mirror Post Cultural Enterprises Co., Ltd., since 2009. Before
joining Sun Hoe Company Limited, Dr. Chui worked in commercial
bank in Hong Kong for about 5 years. Dr. Chui has more than 30
years experience in commerce and general business management.
He was granted Honorary Doctorate of Management from Morrison
University, Nevada, U.S.A.. Dr. Chui was a member of Post-Release
Supervision Board, HKSAR, from November 2005 to November 2007.
He was an adjudicator of the Registration of persons Tribunal from
June 2007 to June 2013. Dr. Chui was awarded The World Outstanding
Chinese Award by World Outstanding Chinese Association. Dr. Chui
was an executive director of Sino Union Energy Investment Group
Limited (Stock code: 346, currently known as Yanchang Petroleum
International Limited) from 2 November 2004 to 6 October 2010.

Mr. Ren Qian, aged 58, was newly appointed as Executive Director
on 5 July 2017. He graduated from the North China University of Water
Conservancy and Electronic Power majoring in Agricultural Water
in 1983 and obtained a Master of Business Administration from the
Beijing Normal University in 2001. He has over 30 years' experience
in the water resources management industry, the housing and urban-
rural development industry and the real estate industry in the PRC. Mr.
Ren was the secretary of the office minister of The Ministry of Water
Resources of the PRC and The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the PRC respectively. He has extensive experience
in planning, usage, development and operation of water resources
and land resources in the PRC. Mr. Ren was also the deputy mayor of
The People’s Government of Hebei Province, Langfang City (mainly
responsible for urban development), the deputy general manager of
China Housing and Urban-Rural Development Huatong Real Estate
Limited* ( P B2 & E02EBE 2 BR A F]) and the chairman of Beijing
Yinghe Property Development Limited. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Ren served as an executive director of China City Infrastructure
Group Limited (Stock Code: 2349) (formerly known as China Botanic
Development Holdings Limited) from 30 July 2009 to 2 December
2016 and was responsible for strategic development and properties
management.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Jun Jia, aged 29, was appointed as an executive director on
1 January 2016. He graduated from Institute of International Relations
of Moscow University in 2014 with an expert degree. He is currently
the general manager of Siberian Energy Group, Inc. ( 78 1A F| 55 8
JRE2 ) , the general manager of Far East Oil Group Limited (& 5
A REB AR A A) and the general manager of Africa Resources
Group Limited (FEM B IREE B R A 7)) . Mr. Xu is currently the
vice president of Hong Kong International Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (HEBIE B E S ) , and head of the Youth Committee
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment (&
BRI E D) . In recent years, he has played an active role
in professional investments in a number of deals in various sectors
such as oil and chemical, metal mining and financial securities, as
well as negotiations and decision making in merger and acquisition,
equity participation and controlling deals. As a result, he is fully
equipped with relevant professional knowledge and operating
experiences. Mr. Xu is fluent in English, Russia, Mandarin and
Cantonese. He is very familiar with oil and gas businesses between
Russia and the international market. Mr. Xu is the son of Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, the Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed as an
Administration Manager of the Company since 1 September 2014.

Mr. Cao Yu, aged 39, was appointed as an executive director on
1 January 2016. He graduated from CERAM Sophia Antipolis with a
master degree in management. Mr. Cao has been the project manager
for listed companies and he was specialized in the operation and
coordination of the drilling and seismic engineering projects with
famous petroleum companies in China. Meanwhile, he was also
responsible for identifying suitable investors to establish joint venture
company for petroleum exploration projects. He has also worked in
the world's largest energy efficiency management company and was
responsible for providing energy efficiency strategy in China region for
the group. Besides, Mr. Cao was the analyst in the headquarter of BNP
Paribas in France. His main duty was to provide financial and strategic
advice in the area of energy technology and he was responsible for
the merger and acquisition activities as well as financial planning
service. Mr. Cao has been engaged in management and analytical
work for many years and possesses the appropriate and professional
experience. He has been the manager of the development
department of the Company since September 2012.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 54. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group.
He has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. His primarily focus
is to further develop the financial business in the Group. He is the
Chairman, Executive Director and Managing Director of Asia Tele-
Net and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the
brother of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 59. He is a co-founder of the Group and is
in charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy Chairman
and Executive Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the brother of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric, aged 54, is a director of several general
trading companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from the Boston University
in Massachusetts, USA and is engaged in the food import business.
Mr. Chen was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director since
September 2000.

Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan, aged 55, holds a Bachelor degree in
Engineering Science and a Master of Arts degree from the University
of Oxford and has over 20 years of experience in the consumer
electronics field. Mr. Kwan is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock
Code: 679). He was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director since September 2004.

Mr. Ng Chi Kin David, aged 56, is a professional accountant with
over 30 years of professional experience and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of CPA Australia. Mr. Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code:
679). He was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since September 2000.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Yim Kai Pung, aged 53, was newly appointed as independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2017. Mr. Yim has extensive
experience working in CPA firms providing services of audit, tax
advices and capital consultancy and planning arrangements for initial
public offering services. He is a Managing Director of CCTH CPA
Limited. He served as an independent non-executive director of HNA
Technology Investments Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2086) (formerly
known as Advanced Card Systems Holdings Limited) from 10 June
2014 to 30 September 2017; an independent non-executive director
of Greens Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1318) from 2009 to 2015;
an independent non-executive director of Success Universe Group
Limited (formerly known as Macau Success Limited) (Stock Code: 487)
from 2004 to 2012; an executive director of Heng Xin China Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Tiger Tech Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
8046) from 2006 to 2007; and an independent non-executive director
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited (presently known as LISI
Group (Holdings) Limited) (Stock Code: 526) from 2005 to 2006. Mr. Yim
graduated from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy degree. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary. He is responsible for the financial and
secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Fu joined the Company in
December 2012. He holds a bachelor degree in science with major
in accounting of Bemidji State University, USA and is a member of
both American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of
experience in auditing and accounting field.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 44, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily operations
and implementation of the internal control procedures of the
Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking and
Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has extensive
experience in the securities, futures and options industry. He joined
the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 61, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited. He is responsible for the management
and development of internet trading services, securities, futures
and other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor
of Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sung
has extensive experience in the securities and futures industry and
held senior positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in February 2001.

INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

Mr. Chow Ka Wo Alex, aged 51, is the Director of Karl Thomson
Financial Advisory Limited. He is responsible for the operation of
the Group's investment banking business since joining the Group
in March 2002. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chow had worked at
various international investment banks. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Applied Mathematics and Economics from the University of
California at Berkeley and a Master of Arts degree in Economics from
the Cornell University in the USA. Mr. Chow was an Executive Director
of Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation (stock code: 2324), which
was subsequently re-named as Capital VC Limited, for the period
between 12 September 2005 to 31 March 2010 and was an Executive
Director of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 0747) for the period from 17 September 2008 to 21 June 2013.
He is also currently a visiting professor of Guang Xi College of Foreign
Languages.
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The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual report
("Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (1) the trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals; (2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration and
production; (3) the provision of financial services and (4) property
investment. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 18 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review, financial performance and future
development of the Group's business are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section from pages 7 to 18.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 191 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact
on the Group's financial performance, operations, business as well as
future prospects.

The business risk faced by the Group is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the capital risk and financial risk
are set out in Note 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction
of pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our
goal to minimize our environmental impacts through recycling of
materials, encouragement of resources savings and reduce wastes.
The Group is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations. For further details on
performance of the Group on environmental aspects during the Year,
please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 60 to 75.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in
which we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any
events on violation with laws and regulations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
legal risks possibly faced by its Directors, Supervisors and senior
management during their duty performances.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. During
the year, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholder.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 84 to 85 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 is set out on page 191 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEEDS

Fund raising from the placement of new shares
under general mandate

The net proceeds from the placement of 50,000,000 news shares in
the Company under general mandate as set out in the announcement
date 14 July 2016 were approximately HK$34 million, which was based
on the placing price of HK$0.70 per placing share after deducting the
expenses relating to the Placement of new shares.

FRERIERREN
RE-REEEEFROBE2ES

R AR 4R — AR 35 % B & 50,000,0008% 3 A% 17
(BREHR T R"RFLtATOBEZAM) Z
PIT 15 SR IR % 58 49 /34,000,000 7T - TR & B
AL ERD0.70/8 TR ECE #1048 68 2 73
XEFAESH-

Actual use of
net proceeds

from the

Net proceeds placement of
from the new shares
placement of under general
new shares mandate as at
under general 31 December
mandate in 2016 2017
R-ZZB—tHF

+=A=+—H

R-ZB-—KF RiE—RRE
RiE—RRE EEHRD 2
BEHRDz FFAESREFHEZ
8RR FE ERAR

As used for general working capital and REAEB 2 —REEES HK$34,000,0007% 7t HK$34,000,000/% 7T
future business development and AR RIRERERRIEE -

investments of the Group.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

30

AR

A FIRE TSR T R (-

il

o
TA

AEBRBE_T—tF+-_A=+—HLFE
VWEERERERI(ZFT—RF &)



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 92%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 100%
Sales

— the largest customer 49%
— five largest customers in aggregate 70%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBs., I.P. (Chairman)

Mr. Neil Bush (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. Ren Qian (appointed on 5 July 2017)
Mr. Xu Jun Jia

Mr. Cao Yu

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing M.H., 1P

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric

Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan

Mr. Ng Chi Kin David

Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 1 July 2017)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation (save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) at each annual general meeting and any additional Director
so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the meeting. Therefore, Mr. Ren Qian and Mr. Yim Kai Pung
retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance Code, any further
appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director in excess of
nine years should subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. Therefore, Mr. Chen Wei-Ming, Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan
and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company or in accordance with the
terms set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 26 of the
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term commencing from 1
September 2000 which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation. These service contracts shall continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party with not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company

EERNRG 2 ESE

R-B—tF+-_A=1+—H8 EZhEF2H
BARKRABREBBEZE (EELEHFRHE
&3 ([FEHF MGG ) BEXVED) 2B - %
BRARAREES R EGIIE352(61FEH
Bt XRBEEBRERXIAAERAA
(MR @Es MR (TEMRA]) EmA
AEFETESFR 2B ESTA (FETA])
SITHEARRR R ZESMT :

1. RAQTESREE0I10BTEER
ZRE

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of Directors Capacity shares held the Company

s e 817 AR

EEHA 14 LZEREE EBRITRAEIH

Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 1,813,827,427 71.94%
TR IE L (A1) REHIERE 2 s

Note 1: These Shares included 828,737,143 Shares held by Triumph Energy
Group Limited, 39,966,000 Shares held by Wisdom On Holdings
Limited, 4,018,000 Shares held by Taiming Petroleum Group Limited
and 941,106,284 Shares held by Golden Nova Holdings Limited. The
issued share capital of Triumph Energy Group Limited is beneficially and
indirectly owned as to 92.67% by Dr. Hui through Golden Nova Holdings
Limited and Simply Superb Holdings Limited. Wisdom On Holdings
Limited, Taiming Petroleum Group Limited and Golden Nova Holdings
Limited are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2. Ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors of the Company,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

a)  During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$31,000 and HK$1,000 separately (2016:
HK$27,000 and HK$Nil separately) from close family members of
two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun.

b)  During the year, the Group received commission income and
other income from securities dealing of approximately HK$5,000
(2016: HK$31,000) from ATNT, in which two Directors, Messrs.
Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continuedq)

C) At 31 December 2017, an executive Directors, Mr. Nam
Kwok Lun, advanced approximately HK$85,305,000 (2016:
HK$129,605,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group paid
finance costs of HK$2,951,000 (2016: HK$4,508,000) to the
executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

d) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made
minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect
of office premises of approximately HK$2,460,000 (2016:
HK$2,400,000) to Gahood Holding Company Limited, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. The transaction also constitutes a
continuing connected transaction under Appendix 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(e)  Asat 31 December 2017, outstanding advances from a Director,
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, amounted to HK$Nil (2016: HK$24,033,000).

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, the Group leased from Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui, the office space located
at Unit 9 (portion) and Units 10-12, 19th Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong for an initial term of two years at a monthly rent of
HK$180,000. Such agreement was renewed in May 2015 to extend the
tenancy period for two years expiring on 31 May 2017 at a monthly
rent of HK$200,000. The tenancy agreement was further renewed and
extended with the tenancy period expiring on 31 May 2019 and the
monthly rent was adjusted to HK$210,000.

Three of these agreements were arm’s length transactions which
were valued by an independent valuer and in the usual and ordinary
course of business of the Company and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

The annual cap amount for each of the financial years ended/ending
31 December 2017, 2018, and 2019 are HK$2,460,000, HK$2,520,000,
and HK$1,050,000 respectively. The total amount of the transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$2,460,000 (2016:
HK$2,400,000).

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreements between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, such Extended
Tenancy Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company

FERR

R-FB—tF+-_A=1+—H BRELAQFRE
HF R EGIIEBRFEZ T ERRELMA
L THRREBARNARMEEARFEE
TR Z HRE R -

RAQABEREECIVETEBER 2R
B

Percentage of

Number of the share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company

g 817 AR

RRAHE &4 ZERHE RAEABDL

Triumph Energy Group Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 828,737,143 32.87%
s REEBRAR (A1) EREAA

Taiming Petroleum Group Ltd (Note 2) Beneficial owner 4,018,000 0.15%
FEABEEBR AT (Hi22) EREAA

Wisdom On Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 39,966,000 1.59%
(K722) EREAA

Golden Nova Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 941,106,284 37.33%
(K722) EREAA

Note 1. The entire issued share capital of Triumph is beneficially and indirectly owned as
t0 92.67% by Dr. Hui Chi Ming through Golden Nova Holdings Limited and Simply
Superb Holdings Limited.

Note 2: The entire issued share capital of Taiming, Wisdom on and Golden Nova are
directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming.

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the year. The details of the Group’s
compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report from page 41 to page 59 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

Details of which is set out in pages 60 to 75 of the Environment, Social
and Governance Report in this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to the Company to re-appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, GB.s., JLP.
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity, transparency
and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2017, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules"), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises of eight
Executive Directors, being Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Chairman), Mr. Neil Bush
(Deputy Chairman), Dr. Chui Say Hoe (Managing Director), Mr. Ren
Qian, Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam Kwaok Lun, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr.
Cao Yu; four Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. Chen
Wei-Ming Eric, Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan, Mr. Ng Chi Kin David and
Mr. Yim Kai Pung. Biographical details, which include relationships
among members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section of the Annual Report. The composition
of the Board is well balanced with the Directors having sound industry
knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning experience
and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a variety of
experience and expertise to the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend

o Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continuead)

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The
Board is committed to making decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The statement by the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out on pages 76 to 83 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to
ensure Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

RY 172 I_q \A$&¢
EEg (A)

§$a%aﬁ5“%k.¥%ﬁwﬁ$gliﬁ
EENEEREEZRTHTES SREEA
%‘ﬂ%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ&hﬁ%i%?%ﬁ‘ﬁ$
SHERRE  BMAONARBARERR 2 &EM=

EEeNBARERBEN MER S ERIRR
“Eﬁ\fﬂﬁ’a/bﬂﬂ}iﬁﬂ$’§%ma?!?ﬁ‘%ﬁk/ﬁzzl»‘%
BRAMBEHRER - ARA BB EH RN EE LR
BUBHRRARIE L EAMNE/6E3A 2B
TRZBEREA -

BEFLT2ALENESHEAREN B
ARREBEEBEREALED  UBRETE

ES
T
ExgRFLABERRIMBRL -

#H X

EZeRERAZETRENEELR WHES
SELBIRTE  EREBME -

43



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED + SlE&REBEHBRAF

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised twelve
members, including eight Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming G.Bs., 1P (Chairman)

Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. REN Qian (appointed on 5 July 2017)
Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing m.H., 1P

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric

Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan

Mr. NG Chi Kin David

Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 1 July 2017)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 26.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board complied
with the Rules 3.10 and 3.10 (A) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors,
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related finance
management expertise and the independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.

On 1 July 2017, Mr. Yim Kai Pung appointed as an independent Non-
Executive Director. All four Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term of three years. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions of the Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out within Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who have
been longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed
pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. This constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Meetings and General Meeting
During the year ended 31 December 2017, eleven Board meetings

and one annual general meeting ("AGM") was held with details of the
Directors’ attendance set out below:

Exg(#

EEggRRREARE
RBZE_ZT—+tF+RA=1+T—HIEFEGHET
tT—XREFgeakRXRREFRKE (KX
BERE]) AHRESZHFEFEHINMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE SERE
Annual
General
Name of Director EENS Board Meeting
= BRRBEAE
Executive Directors: HTES:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming (Chairman) HEMEL (EE) 9/11 11
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman) JER e Mt (BI£/E) 0/11 0/1
Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director) Rt FIiE £ (F FABA4HE) 10/11 11
Mr. REN Qian (appointed on 5July 2017) {ERT%4E (R-F—+F 5/11 N/A*
tARBEEZMT) NEA*
Mr. Xu Jun Jia FFUIR B e A 8/11 0/1
Mr. Cao Yu EFEAE 10/11 0/1
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing ERELE 4/11 0/1
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun ERfmiE 8/11 0/1
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES:
Directors:
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric [ 5/11 0/1
Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan MERERE 5/11 0/1
Mr. NG Chi Kin David REBEE 7/11 11
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on BEREE (RZE—+F 7/11 N/A*
1 July 2017) +A—BEZIT) TEA*

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive introduction
package covering the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities
of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued
by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

*  The AGM was held before appointment.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Directors’ Training (Continued)
The Annual General Meeting was held before appointment.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

During the year of 2017, there were one in-house seminars conducted
covering the topics of director’s duties under Appendix 10 and
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules under the Listing Rules. All Directors
attended the seminars.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, each of the newly appointed
Directors participated in the director’s induction training conducted
by the lawyer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board
and formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's business
and overall operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is
delegated to the management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1 March
2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal;

o monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

o to monitor integrity of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual report, accounts and the half-year report,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continueq)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures;

o and to review compliance with regulatory and legal
requirements by the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. In 2017, the
Audit Committee held two meetings which include considering the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended
30 June 2017, discussing with the Company'’s auditor on the existing
internal control and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Audit Committee also provides in important link between the Board
and the Company's auditors in matters coming within the scope of
its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and
objectivity of the auditors.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group's audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and recommended
them to the Board for approval.
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There were two meetings held during the year, details of attendance FR BERZEELRITMASH LEFSH
are set out below: N UNNE
Number of meetings SRRY 2
Audit Committee members: EZLZBEEKE:
Mr. NG Chi Kin David AEBEE 2/2
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BFEZEEF/E)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric PRIZAASE A (KT —+F 172
(Re-designated on 1 July 2017) +A—H#AT)
Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan BRERE 2/2
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 1 July 2017) BEELEE (RZE—+F 1/2
+H—H ?IXKE)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continueq)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Yim Kai Pung and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, to identify and nominate qualified individuals for
appointment as additional directors or to fill Board vacancies as and
when they arise, and to make recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee
meetings ware held during the year, details of attendance

are set out below:
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Number of meetings SENH 2
Nomination Committee members: RELZBEGKE:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, G.B.S., J.P. FEsiE L, GBS, JP 2/2
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (IEEZE2F/E)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric PRIZEASEAE (R —LF 1/2
(Re-designated on 1 July 2017) +A—HA®)
Mr. NG Chi Kin David AERLE 2/2
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 1 July 2017) BN E (R —+F 1/2

+A—REZRE)

During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the retirement and re-appointment arrangement of the
Directors in the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continueq)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
July 2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in paragraph B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code.
The written terms of reference which describe the authority and
duties of the Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July
2005 and revised on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company'’s website and
the Stock Exchange. A majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee is Independent Non-executive Directors and members of
the Committee are listed as below.

In accordance with the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

o to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continueq)

to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration on
independent non-executive directors;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year.
During the year, one meeting was held to consider and approve the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continuead) BEEZEg (£)
Remuneration Committee (Continued) FMEER (£)
Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year, FR - HIZ 8@ CRT=r@% HFEH5EH
details of attendance are set out below: yanR -
Number of meetings = P8 3
Remuneration Committee members: SWEEEKE :
Dr. Chui Say Hoe BrEMEL 3/3
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FNZE 2+ /E)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric B {2 B 46 A 2/3
(Re-designated on 1 July 2017) (R—EB—+E+A—AHAT)
Mr. NG Chi Kin David AERSEE 3/3
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 1 July 2017) BRAENE A 1/3

(R-FE—tFLtA-—HEZME)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed REBEEE FHEE B ARRZEAH
the existing remuneration policies of the Company. B B 3% o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS B EE ISR AL

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate  ZEZ=E BB HFI AR A ZCEE AR L BTN
governance of the Company and performing the corporate  T{EE ARG

governance duties as below:

(iif)

To develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations,

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

(iif)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
(Continued)

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, the
shareholder communication policy, shareholder enquiry procedures
and special request procedures.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered
FriR AR %

Audit services EiT AR
Other assurance services H A (RE R
Non assurance services IERB RS

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company’s external
auditors for annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing, the secretary of the Company whose
biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has appropriate directors and officers liability Insurance
in place for its Directors and senior management, in order to
safeguard them from any legal and compensation liabilities arising in
the course of discharging their duties.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

() overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 76 to 83 of the
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
gualifications and experience and training of staff and external advisor
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

Deesagpa

EENSREEAENEERE

ARABERREZLSREEABREERRE M
REREENSREBABZHBETRBMEE
FTEREMBERE-

ESHMBBRR2EME

o

EZeRRNRELEER:

0] Etﬂ$%lﬁﬂ%$ﬁz%%zfﬁ%% IR BA TS K
BEERNFRBRAKEZ BB K

(iy BEUBAZEFTHER YEEBERZEFS
AT DAEh B R AR 2 HI B R AT -

REMREE 2 2ERETMIEBRPIHREAFRE
76 83E 7 B BN TRE A o

2 B B T % ) B4R

ExecamAE A REEAEEZENKREA
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ R 2 B l”_{féf&%ir I HER AN 55 B
RILREREE R A A E R E T K A BB I &

o

ERZEERERIUASEMTBEANAE
REERAES BRZEEHRIAEES
it B E R I R B RE M) B T M S BB
MER BE KBLBIRERRE-

AEBEREAERG #E ERELEERR
EIR R NERIE GRS ARG B IR bR R
AEBMEE RN SEBA LN -

55



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED  SlEfREBEHBRAF

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

= Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk or
allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the Group
and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The risk
management and internal control system are design to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has engaged an
external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. There is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified by
the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures of the
Group, covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions were
reasonably effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An annual general meeting shall be held in every year. General
meetings which are not annual general meetings are known as special
general meetings (“SGM") as referred to in the procedures described
below. These procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulations.

Convening of SGM on requisition of shareholders

In accordance with the Companies Act registered Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition shall have the
right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be convened
by the Board.

The written requisition (i) must state the purposes(s) of the meeting,
and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office in Bermuda, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, the requisitionists are urged to deposit also a copy of
the signed requisition at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong (for the attention of the board of directors or the company
secretary).

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene an SGM within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) (or any
of them representing more than one-half of their total voting rights)
may himself/themselves convene an SGM, which must be held within
3 months of the date of deposit of the requisition. The SGM must be
convened by the requisitionist(s) in the same manner as nearly as
possible as that in which SGM is to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, the
registered Shareholders are entitled to putting forward a proposal at a
general meeting if:

(@) they represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b)  there are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolutions is duly signed by the
registered Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Upon receipt of a valid written requisition, the Company shall take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned shall be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimiles
or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the Company at
the following address or facsimile number or via email:

Address: Units 1910-12, 19/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587-7807

Email: pat@hoifuenergy.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward enquiries to the Board (Continued)

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who
shall report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary will
collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and approval.
The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the Executive
Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, questions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to
ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No significant changes to the Company’s constitutional documents
were made during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and
sound corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims
to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports
o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
o Notice and circular of general meetings

o Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: www.hoifuenergy.com

o Direct enquiry sent to the Company
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RE HENERERSE

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF ESG REPORT

This report has been prepared by the management of the Company in
accordance with the requirement of the Appendix 27 Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The environmental, social and governance report of Hoifu Energy
Group Limited (the “ESG Report”) has been presented into two subject
areas, Environmental and Social and each subject area will have
various aspects to disclose the relevant policies and the status of
compliance with relevant laws and regulations as addressed by the
ESG Guide.

The Guide has indicated that the requirement of key performance
indicators would upgrade to “comply or explain” with effective date
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The Board believed that the responsible and respective environmental
and social strategy and policies are extremely important to the
Group as the developer of natural resources. The Board has overall
responsibility for the Group’s environmental and social strategy
and reporting and this report has been reviewed and approved. The
following will show the ESG issues that found material for the Group
and the relation to the ESG Reporting Guide:

ESG Guide
ESG & 3|

A.  Environmental
A IRIE

A1 Emissions
A1 BERW

A2 Use of resources
A2 FRER

A.3 Environmental and natural resources
A3 RERRKAER
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Relevant ESG issues to the Group
B K MAHBWESGE 1B

Carbon dioxide emission and waste management
—E bR R EE Y B R

Energy and water consumption
BEIR MIKOHFE

Measures in reducing environmental impact
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RE #HE2RERERSE

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF ESG REPORT #= RESGHR&EEE (/£)

(Continued)

ESG Guide
ESG 153l

B.  Social
B. H=

B.1 Employment
B1 1%

B.2 Health and safety
B2 HERELZE

B.3 Development and training
B3 EREKiFI

B.4 Labour standards
B4 T XA

B.5 Supply chain management
BS5 ftrEgEER

B.6  Product responsibility
B6 EmAEE

B.7 Anti-corruption
B7 KRES

B.8 Community investment
B8 tt@IEE

Relevant ESG issues to the Group
A& B AHRI ESGE 1H

Labour practices
BIER

Workplace health and safety
TIESFRmREE S

Employee development and training
BB # R KIEI

Child labour and forced labor
ETREHISET

Supplier management
HERER

Product safety and quality
EmZrRER

Anti-corruption and money laundering
k&5 RERE

community involvement
ftEe s

61



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED e« SlE &

EREEERA A

Environmental, Social and Govermance Report

RIE-#HEKRER

wE

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF ESG REPORT
(Continued)

The principal activities of the Group are:

(M

@

©)

the provision of financial services in Hong Kong;

property investment in the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC"),

hotel management in Madagascar; and

The Group will dispose the business of mineral mining exploration and
production in 2018 and the Management of the Group is of the view
that the mining business is a discontinued operation of the Group.
Therefore, the focus of this report is placed on general disclosure of
mining business.

A.

62

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has established environmental policies and has
communicated measurable environmental objectives to
employees. The Group actively encourages staffs to protect the
environment through training, education and communication.

The development of natural resources required the permission
of the central and local governments. The Group has maintained
proper and long-term relationship with the relevant central and
local government department in the various jurisdiction. The
Group has committed to comply with all relevant environmental
policies established by both the central and local government
and also committee to implement environmentally friendly
facility such as water recycling system. The Group always
keeps itself up-to-date on developments in local legislation and
standards for environmental protection. During the reporting
period, the Group did not experience any cases of non-
compliance relating to environmental laws and regulations in
PRC and Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

The water source of project is underground water well of
nearby area, and the site management recycles water wherever
possible. This project does inevitably produce a small amount of
domestic sewage and is discharged into the factory septic tank
treatment and used for plantations.

The main pollutants in the project are dust generated from
open-pit mining, waste rocks produced from mining; and
noise generated during mining. Water sprinkling measures and
dust covers were installed wherever possible to reduce dust
pollution; mining machinery to strictly control the working hours
to address noise pollution; setting a dust cover. The mining site
of the Group is far from urban area.

A.1 Emissions

The Group has strived to minimise the environmental
impact of its mining activities, production activities and
products. Management is of the view that the Group
complied with applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

RE HE2RERERSE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A RIE(E)
A.1 Emissions (Continued) A1 HEWY (&)
The mineral mining, oil and gas business are in the opinion EERR EEMAREBELRSE
of the directors the most significant to the environmental NMEESAZERIEFFIFA&RY @
concern of the Group and its stakeholders. The mining AR REEMPAFBITILERER D
and production of Zeolite business located in Zhangjiakou mZHA([BEE)EBEAEAE
City, Hebei, the PRC (the “Zeolite Mine") is the only active W—ERHAFEEL HtRARKA
exploitation operations of the Group, other mining and IR B R A 125 B RS ER S IR AR &
oil projects are under initial exploration stage or mining FEE BHIRBUESERZE - HAR
planning stage and have no significant effect to the RBERERBRFATEE) 2 HR155
environment. The Zeolite Mine is an open-pit mine and M-Stk RIEEZEEBE#EEW £
machineries used for the mining activities will emit CO2 ERFETEBE#:E B RAE R
and Volatile Organic Compound (VOCs). There are also HAZERELETRIHEE - A5E
machineries in the production plants, which are powered ESAEEEHIFT R PEECR  RE
by electricity and the heating system will supply the TEERMEE B 1S EREMKER-
factory during the winter. The Group has established policy
to limit the emissions from the mining activities to restrict
the driver to switch off the machinery when they are
vacant for 15 minutes.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, air emission BHE-_Z—+tF+A=+—H81
for nitrogen oxides (“NOXx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and FE-ASLY (INOX]) a1
respiratory suspended particles ("RSP”, also known as Y) (TSOX ) REBEBHEM KRB ZFFEN
Particulate Matter (“PM")) were mainly produced from the ([RSP] - Irig &K ([PM]) ) =E
company vehicles. The following table is the emission data EEEARRARIEH  FERHFIIAE
within the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017: HE_Z—+tHF+-A=1+—HLHF
BRI B EUE
NOX (g) SOX (g) PM (g)

NOXx (%) SOx (5) PM (%)
Headquarter REE= 14,587 809 107
Property management R 134,460 1,029 990
Hotel B 483 3 46
Mining R 315,581 1,512 8,199
Total 4T 465,111 3,353 9,342
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continueq)

The main source of the Group's greenhouse gas
emissions is derived from direct emission from the mobile
combustion sources (“Scope 1), indirect emission from
acquired electricity emissions (“Scope 2“) and other
indirect emissions (“Scope 3"). The greenhouse gas of
Scope 1 was generated by vehicles used and machinery
used, Scope 2 was generated by electricity usage and
Scope 3 was generated by water consumption, paper
used and business travel by employees. The follow table
is total greenhouse gases emissions from Scope 1, Scope

RE HERELGHRE

BRIR ()

A1 BB ()

AEEAERBERNEZRERE
BREREERFR(THE—]) B
BEENMEEER([SE ) REM
MEER([BE=]) &&=
REEENERERRHR -HKE—
EXNBAERBR=EENAX A
MEkEEEK - TAABAKEEEC
E—tF+-_A=t—"BULFEHEE
— HBE_REBZELNAERE
HERiEE -

2 and Scope 3 within the Group for the year ended 31

December 2017.

Scope 1CO2  Scope2CO:  Scope 3 CO:
equivalent equivalent equivalent
emissions emissions emissions

(kg) (kg) (kg)

gl — i) giE=

—gEbhx —&E1bhx —gbh

FHEE EREE HREE

(Fm=) (F%=) (Fm=)

Headquarter e 14,907 NA 7 13,102
Property management mEER 18,955 1,617 8,547
Hotel B 551 42,905 752
Mining EEES 818,851 47,400 1,321
Financial services & BR NA 7T~i@ 30,159 7,068
Total 4T 853,264 122,081 30,790

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not
generated any hazardous waste. There is non-hazardous
waste including domestic garbage was produced. The
above environmental wastes, which would pollute the
land, would be disposed of by the Group to disposal
services provider.

BE_T—tF+-_A=1+—HL
FRE ASEYEELTMNRRESR
YO EELBEERY BRAEERL
Fo EMRIBENE TR LM K&
FefEXARERBHEEHARE
e
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RE HERERERE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

66

A1

A.2

Emissions (Continued)

For the mining business the Group is governed by, and
has complied with, the Environmental Protection of the
People’s Republic of China Prevention {FrEE A R KA
IRIBIRTEE) . The Group does not generate significant air
emission or hazardous waste.

Also, the Group believed that the emissions of headquarter,
property management, financial services and hotel
business would not generate significant emissions to the
air and water. The Group has encouraged staff to turn off
light and office equipment during the luncheon rest time,
make good use of electronic documents, and restrict staff
to use recycle paper when printing internal documents.

Use of resources
Energy and water consumption

The Group considered that the efficient use of resources
is not only the key of efficiency productions but also
the key of the Group's attribution to the environmental
friendly strategy. The total amount of usage of the Group
is mainly indirect and insubstantial since all energy
resources are consumed for the offices’ operation. The
Group implemented the following key initiatives during the
Reporting period:

o switch off lights and air-conditioning in the meeting
room and computers at work stations where not in
use,

A.

BRIR ()

A1

A.2

B (42)

AEBERREBR (PEARLTNE
RIBEREE) RE - WETRER AN
SEYBELAEERENNA ERE
zm-

gESh . REEARE AR mEEE
SRRBMEEER 2RSS
ZEREKBREEREHRY KEE
SRETHEFAREHEBAZEERRA
ERtE EAETX XRFIBETR
¥T EN A 8B 344 B £ 3 [ U 4 -

FERER
BEE R K E #E

AEERE SRERERTELS
MEEZBR TREAEEEBRRR
B AR AEEERBLETRR
WEEFEER ASMERRERN
RPAREZERR - AKRECRRE
HRAE A TR E:

s EHERBHASZENRAEN
EHRTIERNER:



Annual Report 2017 « —E—tH &3]

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERRSE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
A.2 Use of resources (Continued)
Energy and water consumption (Continued)
o select the best configuration for air-conditioning
control programme, based on in-door requirement

and out-door condition;

o encourage teleconference and internet-meeting
practices to avoid unnecessary travel; and

o advocate the use of double-sided printing and
photocopying to reduce paper consumption, and
encourage reuse single-sided paper.

The following consumption data was recorded in the year
ended 31 December 2017:

A BRIR(#E)

A2 ERER (&)

BERRANCHFE ()

ERARBEANERREINMER
HAENEF  BRKENZERL
=

s ZFEEFEILMLEH B
THEMER: &

o HBEIRMAEEITRTEAR
HEERCEETEIMARER A
D AR o

Electricity Water

consumption  consumption Paper used
(kwh) (Tons) (kg) Diesel (L) Petrol (L)

¥E FK RE&
(FRE) (1) (F%) () o (F)
Headquarter ok NA @R NA T A 659 NA i A 5,505
Property management NEER 1,617 18 7,680 NA T @ 7,000
Hotel G 172,415 6,037 NA g A 199 NA 3 A
Mining o 47,400 NA &R 225 286,822 8,581
Financial services L RR% 47,872 NA i B 3293 NA i A NA NE A
Total ok 269,304 6,055 11,857 287,021 21,086
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A.

638

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continueq)
A.3 Environmental and natural resources

The Group's operation has less impact to environment
compared to manufacturing. However, for reduction on
the environmental impact and use of natural resources,
the Group would continue to adopted green office
practices to reduce natural resource consumption and
the impact on the environment and the Group drives to
achieve higher energy efficiency and reduce emission
by reducing consumption and adopting low resources
alternatives.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that one of the key aspects of its success is
the good relationship it maintains with employees. The Group
provides competitive employee benefits and comprehensive
training programmes in order to encourage employees to
achieve their potential and put their abilities into good use.

B.1 Employment

The Group's success largely relies on the effort
contributed by the staffs of the Group at all levels. Their
local experiences and knowledge have assisted the
Group to maintain the long-term relationship with major
stakeholders in the various jurisdiction. Every staff of
the Group has signed the employment contract with
the Group, which has been fully complied with the local
employment law and regulations.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #&(#&)
B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 EE (#&)
The Group's practices and policies with respect to: REEBBAUTSEZEH RIBE:
e compensation and dismissal; . BEE MR
e recruitment and promotion; . REREF:
e working hours; . TERFEL:
e restperiods; . RERERE ;
e equal opportunities; . FE#E
o diversity; . % ik
e fair recruitment and promotion . NEREREA:
e anti-discrimination; and . R+ &
»  welfare and other benefits, . RPN E T EES
which have complied with Labor Law of the People’s FEFPH(hEARLEMEAL
Republic of China (/R # A R #£ A E & 8))%) |, Labor EY KR EARAENMBLHER
Contract Law of People’s Republic of China {fr#E A R EY BB (EREL) (ZEIAE
ME & B4 BYE) in China; Employment Ordinance ({g By A REAMAEREERRER U
EIEHY , Minimum Wage Ordinance (& 1{& L& (& 51) TEIREBEFN RIRRE -

in Hong Kong and other relevant laws and regulations to
ensure the employees’ rights and protections.
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B.1

B.2

Employment (Continued)

The Group also aims to promote the diversity of the
workforce, including in terms of age, gender and
nationality, as well as the culture of equal opportunity.
The management would frequently review the Group’s
remuneration policy in relation to relevant market
standards.

The Group’'s employees work under a 40-hour standard
per week and it maintains a holiday policy and travel
policy, as well as annual vacation leave, compensation
leave, maternity leave, personal leave and sick leave.

Health and Safety

In order to mitigate workplace incidents and strengthen
the health care taken for employees who have suffered
from a workplace incident. The Group has established a
staff handbook which included sufficient policies on the
safety and every member would require to follow the
safety instruction.

With respect to occupational safety management, the
Group has complied with all the corresponding laws and
regulations of occupational safety and health. Workplace
is equipped with fire and safety equipment to prevent
outbreak of fire accident and the validity of the fire
facilities have been regularly checked. During the year, the
Group has reported zero work-related fatalities and work
injuries.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B.3

B.4

Development and Training

The Group has always believed that people development
plays the fundamental role in placing a solid ground for
business growth. The Group aims to regularly upgrade
staffs’ professional skills and knowledge, standards and
integrated abilities. The Group also motivates employees’
job enthusiasm and welcome challenges, thereby creating
greater corporate value and future development.

The Group has various training programmes, internal and
external, to fully develop its workforce. New employees
are also provided with on-board training to help faster
adapt to the operations of the Group.

Labour Standards

The labour standards may be various in different
jurisdictions that the Group has operated and the Group
has complied with the relevant labour standards for the
year ended 31 December 2017. It is always the Group’s
policy to prohibit to employ any staffs who has under the
legal working age for protecting minors.

The labour standards may be various in different
jurisdictions that the group has operated. For example,
the Group observes relevant labour standards of Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (& & A
REMBILE)AREE) for the year ended 31 December
2017. There is a strict recruitment procedure through
Human Resource Department and upon discovery of any
child labour and use of forced labour, the person will be
dismissed immediately and the Board will discuss and
review the problem to prevent it from happening again.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no labour
dispute between the company and its staff.
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B.5

B.6

Supply Chain Management

The Group aims to provide comprehensive solutions that
meet customers’ needs and establish a comprehensive
vertical supply chain management system through
resource integration and supplier screening and
management.

The objectives are to deepen the collaborative
relationship with the suppliers and to create competitive
advantages in the value chain, thereby aim to enhance
the impact on the society and environment. The Group
also tended to maintain long term relationship with its
suppliers for ensuring stable supply.

The Group has business in the hospitality industry,
during the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
carefully selected its suppliers for providing to ensure
the quality of the products, and endeavor to ensure their
business partners throughout the supply chain follows the
same stance on sustainable development. The Group has
established policy to maintain long term relationship with
the major supplier.

Product Responsibility
Financial Services

The Group provides financial services to meet the
customer’s financial needs, the Group implements
specific procedures to ensure the quality of the
services and products provided. The financial services
or products provided to customers are tailored to their
financial background and risk tolerant level. The Group is
committed to providing clear information for customers to
make informed decision.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B #&(4#&)

B.6 Product Responsibility (Continuea) B6 EmEE (&)

Property Management

To ensure the health and safety of patrons and employees
of the vicinity of the Groups’ property, whether in the
construction and or operation, the building of the Group
would be tested and maintain and repaired to ensure the
property’s safety quality. The products of the Group are
subjected to the Product Quality Law of the PRC, which
makes the company have a responsibility to compensate
for the damage done to a person or property if the
products defect.

The Group strictly complies with the Advertising Law
of the People’s Republic of China and requires related
parties to do likewise in the advertising contract.

Protection of Customer’s Data

The Group’s employees are obligated to retain in
confidence any and all information obtained in connection
with their employment, including, but not limited to,
trade secrets, client information and other proprietary
information.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
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B.7 Anti-Corruption

The Group prevents employees from corruption, theft,
fraud and embezzlement. Various documentations and
directives from our Human Resource function clearly
states that employees should not offer, solicit or accept
anything of material value to or from a fellow employee,
customer, supplier or other business associates in relation
to the Group's affairs without the knowledge and consent
of the Company. The contravention of these policies
will be subject to disciplinary action or termination of
employment.

The Group upholds a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations. Management considers a
system with good moral integrity and anti-corruption
mechanism as the cornerstone for the sustainable and
healthy development of the Group. The Group has policies
to comply with guideline on anti-money laundering and
counter-terrorist financing of the jurisdictions the Group
has operations in. Any suspicious transactions would be
notified and reported to the relevant governing body by
the responsible officer.

In respect of the Group's operation in China, the Group
observes the relevant laws and regulations of Criminal law
of the People’s Republic of China (/R # A R £ F1 [
%) and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FPEAREMBER TEEHRFE) .
The Group has instructions and directives in relation to
anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, such events have
never happened in the Group.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. &g (#&)
B.8 Community investment B8 HERKRE
Contributing to society is a part of the Group’s sustainable PR AAEBIRERRER 2
development strategy The Group is committed to — B AEERNRREMERRE
providing career opportunities to the locals and promoting HEEREREEMREEER K
the development of the community’s economy. The Group RAEBNKSKEZHE AR
would also seek more opportunity to contribute the social BRI NE-

community in the coming future.
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elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hoifu
Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 190, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter
BREXSBHE
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BAREXER

BREZFEDREBRMANEXHE RRER
BHMERBEE_T—tF+-_A=+—HLFE
ZEAVBRRRAREENEHR GELEHER
BREZBES A BHRERMIEREMNE
REETRE MEMTEHELEREHER
HER -

How the matter was address in our audit
EMETERFNAEREZEE

Impairment assessment of accounts receivable
FE W BR FOR B R A

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had accounts receivables
of approximately HK$128,694,000, as disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, of which approximately
HK$103,460,000, HK$629,000 and HK$24,605,000 were
allocated to financial business, trading natural resource and
petrochemical and property investment business respectively.
RZZBE—+F+ZA=+—8 B E P BRERM T2
BT BEEMEKRKLR128,694,0004 T R AR
#7103,460,0007% 7T ~ 629,000/ 7T 224,605,000/ 7T 53 il 9 Aic
ZE@MER ARRERROIERESRMEREER -

Our major audit procedures to address the management’s
impairment assessment of accounts receivable included
the following:
EMEEEREHREWERBRET N EEEZER
BIENAT&IE:

] We tested the effectiveness on the control environment
in respect of the the accounts receivable, including the
Group's existing provisioning policy.
B2 R AR FIE SRR (B 1E
BRBHER) AR -

BERENR

o We reviewed the ageing of receivables balances
as at the financial year end and discussed with the
management of the Company whether impairment
should be made for debts (especially, those that had
been past due).

o BMERTRIRFEREBUGRIBETIRER R

E==RyaN

H SAREEENWESANER BrReS
Hi% {F thRl(E -
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREZSEE

ARELZEE(F)

How the matter was address in our audit
BMETERRNMEEZER

Impairment assessment of accounts receivable (Continuead)
P& Wt BR SR TS (4F)

We had identified impairment assessment of the accounts
receivable as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement had to be made for the assessment
of the recoverability of the accounts receivable, including
but not limited to the credit quality and settlement history of
customers.
BMERREYERRORET (G A —BEREZEE  LTH
REBERZ AT ENE T G AR ELERAE B8R
BREFPHNEEEXRBETENTH:

78

We tested on large individual aged receivables
balances, discussed with the management of
the Company the rationale for management’s
provisioning decisions by reference to payment
patterns during the year as well as other information
available.
BMERARREERRRRRNEBURERERETT &
SEFRANNFEAREMA]ESEREE EAA
ERENREEBELEBEATNIER-

We assessed the level of cash collected by the Group
after the year end of past due receivable balances
to consider whether sufficient impairment had been
made.

BMEFGRFEBE ESEAMERIELT
WReWEBER UEEREE/EEFTERAE
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Key audit matter
BREZSEE
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BREFLEER(

ZL”/

How the matter was address in our audit
BMETERRNMEEZER

Valuation of investment properties
BREMEME

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group's investment properties measured at fair
value amounted to approximately HK$598,151,000 as
at 31 December 2017. The fair value was determined by
management with reference to the valuations performed by
an independent professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by

the Group.
FLHEGRAEMBREWNI0 R —+tF+ A =+—
A ES5EZRAFEFENREYE R 4L598,151,000%

TZAFENIHEREELS2E EREZENBUEEM
1ERD ([f51EED] ) EITHMEMEE -

The valuations of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates, which mainly included the
determination of valuation techniques and the selection
of different inputs in the models. The valuation techniques
include comparison approach and investment approach.
KEYELBESIRERAB RGH T 2REEEMHERE
FMOREBERERNTRBARBE - hEREZBRBLEBERKE
b

Considering the above mentioned significance of judgement,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuations, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matters.

EE LA REFTNEEE RIGENMEEE -
BYEGERIE-IBRREZEE

B &

Our major procedures to address the valuation of
investment properties included the following:
HZMEEREYEGHENTERFBEATRIE:

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer.
o BMEFHEEMNER g RE&HIE-

o We communicated with the Group’s management
about the valuation techniques adopted by
the valuer, and assessed the relevance and
reasonableness of valuation techniques used by the
valuer.

o BME ESEEEEMGEAMMRANGESE
EITRRYA G EMAT AN G ES ENERNE
RERBM-

o We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
and assumptions made by the valuer, in particular
the comparable properties and discount rate.

. BME s EhEMED A B RRENEEE - LH
A BB ERFTEE-
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continuead)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number
P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED e

HERRSEERAR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%;II—A =\/

Hitt 2 E WS R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—=-Z

—tF+-A=+—BLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE-RE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(g&&E5))
Continuing operations BFEREER
Revenue W zs 7 97,065 31,329
Cost of goods sold and direct cost BYEEKARBEEKA (51,563) (4,384)
Gross profit EA 45,502 26,945
Other income Hap g A 8 2,271 3,631
Other gains or losses Hitb Y as sk &5 18 9 132,954 (2,593)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEBER (1,082) (929)
Administrative expenses TERE M (71,750) (58,302)
Impairment loss on exploration and BERERGFEERESE
evaluation assets (2,886) (2,003)
Profit/(Loss) from operation EERF (518) 105,009 (33,251)
Finance costs B8 A 11 (10,531) (6,358)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRESATE R, (E518) 94,478 (39,609)
Taxation I8 12 (31,896) 673
Profit/(Loss) for the year SECEEE
from continuing operations FREF, (EE) 13 62,582 (38,936)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
(Loss)/Profit for the year ERIEEEER 2
from discontinued operations FR(E18), &5 14 (100,079) 42,081
(Loss)/Profit for the year FA (&), &EF (37,497) 3,145
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) HamU s, (X H)
ltems that may be reclassified HigngeEHomE
subsequently to profit or loss: BExmoHEB:
Exchange differences BEEAZELERE
arising on translation 55,425 (31,719)
Fair value (loss)/gain on AHEERSF I ATE
available-for-sale securities (E18) = (342) 144
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBRmRHEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 @61_7 —+tF+ZA=+—BLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tE —ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt =E FHEx FAET
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Other comprehensive FREMEAENRE (ZH)
income/(expenses) for the year 55,083 (31,575)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) FREMEW (K H) &%
for the year 17,586 (28,430)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to  ANA FIHEA A 1L
owners of the Company FRm A, (EE)
from continuing operations RHEEEEY 61,976 (39,777
from discontinued operations B IEEEET (50,312) 35,156
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ~ ANQ Bl #E A AJE(L
owners of the Company FREF, (EE) 11,664 (4,627)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to  FE3EARHEZS FE(S
non-controlling interests FAREA, (EE)
from continuing operations REEE X 606 841
from discontinued operations BARIMEEER (49,767) 6,925
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to eI AL
non-controlling interests FA(E1E),&mF (49,161) 7,766
(37,497) 3,145
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) e 2R, (2 i) 48%8 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIETFEN 64,656 (21,027)
Non-controlling interests FEfE i 36 (47,070) (7,403)
17,586 (28,430)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BREMN (EE)
From continuing and SEICEEB R
discontinued operations BRI T
- Basic and diluted —ERR#E 17 HK$0.00468 7T HK$(0.0026)% 7T
From continuing operations B RS
- Basic and diluted —%$ N#EE 17 HK$0.0246 T HK$(0.0227)% T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R 3R

At 31 December 2017 R=—Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 5 FET FHET
Non-current assets RBEE

Fixed assets EEEE 19 120,572 177,230
Investment properties "EYHE 20 598,151 432,639
Intangible assets mEEE 21 1,401 43,782
Exploration and evaluation assets BDHERGETEE 22 = 2,886
Available-for-sale securities Al S E 5 24 1,098 1,440

Deposit paid for acquisition of Wy % — I BT B R )

a subsidiary 2 E® 41 118,757 -
Statutory deposits EERE 25 4,057 4,055
Loans receivable B E R 26 21,975 12,483
Prepaid land leases N L AES 27 - 6,546

866,011 681,061
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5B 28 - 57,062
Prepaid land leases EN LS 27 - 169
Accounts receivable JFE W BR 3R 29 128,694 138,993
Loans receivable R E R 26 1,480 127
Other receivables, H e U AR5

prepayments and deposits ENRERERE 30 7,827 177,910
Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts) BRI TEEEFEZR (—REF) 31 5,239 5,229
Bank balances (trust and RITHETT

segregated accounts) (Bt R BILERF) 31 163,219 156,816
Bank balances (general accounts) RITET (—RERP) KRS

and cash 31 164,679 132,903

471,138 669,209
Assets classified as DERFELEZ
disposal group held for sale HEMREE 318,821 -
789,959 669,209
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable FERTER K 32 177,514 174,237
Other payables and accrued expenses HMEMNERRRESER 33 37,891 93,837
Amounts due to a Director N —REERFHIA 34 85,305 153,638
Tax payable FE IR 156 12,240
300,866 433,952
Liabilities associated with disposal BEEHE 2 B EA5R
group held for sale E@zaE 133,403 =
434,269 433,952
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e Mg R R

At 31 December 2017 R—_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+tF AL

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Mo FET FHE T

Net current assets RBEEFE 355,690 235,257

Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABAE 1,221,701 916,318
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 23 33,025 11,911

Borrowings BE 35 311,005 -

Corporate bonds NEES 36 19,312 =

363,342 11,911

Net assets EEFE 858,359 904,407
Capital and reserves B R #E

Share capital fi% s 37 252,128 252,128

Reserves e 584,364 519,708

Equity attributable to owners of RARIEE ANEILER

the Company 836,492 771,836

Non-controlling interests AR == 21,867 132,571

Total equity REHBE 858,359 904,407

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 190 were

FYHEANGREMBREANR_-F—N\F=

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, c.B.s., J.P.
HFE B LeBs, P
DIRECTOR
E2

AZThAREZSHERRENZE  WHIAT

RERBEF:

Dr. Chui Say Hoe
HrtEREL
DIRECTOR
E2

87



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED  SlEfREBEHBRAF

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANTREAEL
Capital Investment Currency Nor-
Share Share  Contributed redemption revaluation translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
REEfR
e RER R4BH  HAWERE HE  MNBRERE RitER Nt FERER &
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Fin FEn TEn Tin FiEn FEn TEn TiEn FiEn TEn
(noteg)
(Hita)
At1January 2016 RZE-"%5-A-8 165,024 365406 s 4120 = (17.979) (448,011) 380,104 140,302 520406
Profi for the year EFER - - - - - - [1621) (6620 7766 3145
Bxchange differences EXZE - - - - - (16479) o (16479) (15.240) 31719
Fair value gain on available-for-sale securities At EFE ATEKS - - - - il - - 73 l 104
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FRREXAEE - - - - 7 (16479) (4621 2102 7409 (28430
Shares issued BRIk 5000 30,000 = = = = = 35000 = 35,000
Share repurchase and cancelled RIVBEREH (1.467) (6859) - 1467 - - (1467) (8:326) - 8328)
Purchases of non-contraling interest BEFIRER o S o o S = ) (24 2 -
Acquisiton of subsidiaries not consttuting HEHBL AT RN -ERS
abusiness 8571 302,538 = = = = = 36,109 = 386,109
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - - (32) (32)
At31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE-7%
tZA=+-RR
“E-+5-A-8 252,128 691,085 s 5587 73 (34,458) (454123 77183 13257 904,407
Lossfor the year ERER o - - - - - 11,664 11,664 9,161 (37,9
Exchange differences EXZS - - - - - 53,166 - 53,166 2259 55,425
Far value loss on avaiable-forsele securities AfLERS 2 ATEBE - - S o (174) S - (174) (168) (382
Total comprehensive expenses for th year ERRERLEE S = S - (174) 53,166 11,664 64,65 (47,070) 1758
Deregisiration of subsiciaries HENEAF - - - - - - - - (63634) (63634
At31 December 2017 RZE-t%
tZh=1-A 250128 691,085 s 5587 (101) 18,708 (442459 83492 20867 858359
Note: B -

(a) Capital redemption reserve has been set up and is dealt with on repurchases  (a) BAABEORBEDRY  AREBARRBSRH ZER

and cancellations of the Company's own shares. The application of the capital R -BEABRREEZEREARE-NN\—FQF
redemption reserve is governed by Section 42A of the Companies Act 1981 of TEBAAIE (BEIBET)RE -

Bermuda (as amended).
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tFE T REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Operating activities KESTE
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRELAT (E518) & A (5,332) 10,527
Adjustments for: BT SEEL AR
Reversal of allowance bad and Rz AR B O 1
doubtful debts (2,515) (2,512)
Fair value change on investment properties wEY AT EE (130,420) -
Interest income FEHA (9) @)
Finance cost % E 10,531 6,457
Depreciation e 8,862 8,465
Amortisation b5 2,577 5,225
Impairment Loss on exploration and iR R EETEEREEE
evaluation assets 2,886 2,003
(Gain)/Loss on disposal/deregistration of HE /FHEMBRARZ
subsidiary (Wz=) E#E (888) 817
Operating cash flows before EEESRHACRERERE
movements in working capital (114,308) 30,975
Increase in inventories FEEM = (60,498)
Decrease/(Increase) in statutory deposits EERERD () (2) 221
Increase in loan receivables FE U & FRIE AN (10,845) (11,366)
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable FEUBR SR AL (1) 22,591 (14,081)
Decrease in other receivables, Hth YRR 31 TE SRIE K
prepayments and deposits b A 51,862 120,100
Increase in bank balances RITEIFIL AN
(trust and segregated accounts) (EFERBILERP) (6,403) (68,607)
(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable FEATEBRZR (R ) /1 hn (2,039) 68,320
Increase in other payables and H bR ERT & AN
accrued expenses 44,250 88,387
cash (used in)/generated from ce (A FERE
operations (14,894) 153,451
Tax paid EHIIR - (3,310)
Interest paid BAFIE (9,424) (6,457)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETER (FTA) FERLFHE
operating activities (24,318) 143,684
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—=-Z

—tF+-A=+—BLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of fixed assets HEETEE (1,766) (8,609)
Proceed from disposal of fixed assets HEETE ééﬁﬁ%%ﬂ 9,733 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A = (43,940)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary HEMRBA Tﬁﬁﬁ FRIE - 3,446
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—ENB AR 23] & (115,420) -
Purchase of available-for-sale securities BEAUHHERS - (1,296)
Placement in pledged fixed deposits GFEEEMTEHER (10) (13)
Interest received on bank deposits |ITHEREWFIE 9 7
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFAESFE (107,454) (50,405)
Financing activities AT E
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT PTBRIB - 35,000
Payments for repurchase of shares ﬁ% B 8% 9 2 -7 3 - (8,326)
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds 1T A &SI RIA
(net of issuance cost) (FBREEITRCA) 19,210 -
Increase in borrowings EEEM 310,000 =
Decrease in amount JEN —REEFRIERD
due to a Director (68,080) (21,239)
Net cash generated from RMETBHRELRESFE
financing activities 261,130 5,435
Net increase in cash and ReRERREEEZ
cash equivalents N5 129,358 98,714
Cash & cash equivalents FUOzHRERERAREER
at beginning of the year 132,903 50,390
Effect of exchange rate changes INESTE RN B o B (52,452) (16,201)
Cash & cash equivalents FHRZBEERERRALER
at end of the year 209,809 132,903
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRERRESBREEHIN
cash equivalents
Bank balances (general accounts) RITHETF (—REP)RRE
and cash 164,679 132,903
Cash and cash equivalents included RekFERBELHEE
in disposal group held for sale (BT AER B 2 HEAR) 45,130 =
209,809 132,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Golden Nova Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company
is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (1) the trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals; (2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration
and production, (3) the provision of financial services and (4)
property investment. During the year, the operation of mineral
mining in the PRC was discontinued (See note 10).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and most of its subsidiaries.

—KREE

RARTREBERERE-NAN—FQRE (&
IR GEMK L ARREAR HRONE
BHMERXGFAERAR ([BRAM]) ERLE
MeARB 2 HBREREZEZERATANER
BXEES ([RBEZHE MKz
AlGolden Nova Holdings Limited e

rEEBHEEZE-_T—tF+ZA=+—H1
FEZIRAUBHREREARR REKE
NEl (BB [AEE]) - ARABREER
RAal AEBZEEZEBRAMRRERK
BEERES : QFRE-  AAHEXRARIE
REE: QIRHESHRE: RAWRKRE-
FA - PEFBEEBDRIELE (R
10) °

REMBRERABITEY BARARE

RERA
REBOMBERAR ZHEEEHHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") for the first time:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to make
disclosures that aim to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
Reconciliations of various types of the Group’s financing
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 35 and 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than such additional disclosures, the
application of the amendments has not had any material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Except for the above impact, application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKAS 28

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Transfers of Investment Property’

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSS
2014-2016 Cycle!

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
&l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures.
However, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rule”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transferred at fair value and a valuation technigue that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continueq)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or l0ss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;,

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Commission and brokerage income are recognised when the
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Advisory fee income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the
period in which the properties are let out and on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the rights
to receive payment have been established.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of fixed assets when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Costs of exploratory wells (pipelines, drilling
cost and others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic oil and gas
reserves have been discovered.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for natural resources as well as the determination of
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible or tangible assets. These assets are assessed
for impairment before reclassification.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually. When one of the following events or
changes in circumstances, which is not exhaustive, indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable has occurred,
impairment test is performed in accordance with HKAS 36.

. the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed.

° substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned.

. exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of natural resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in the
specific area.

. sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

106

TESEE (&)

BRREEE (&)

EABRTARRKARE R M AT RE
AT - RMEI R AT RER 2 R R F &
ENENDBERBEVIXENEE - WEEE
HEEH OB ERE -

BER G EEBE

BHREGEEZRAESFAFERT -
ERNATEMN—FEHELEXBERELE
TREES TN EE - RIREFE ST E
AISE365E TR E R -

s REEFENFTHEHRIHECD
ENEES Sy SEIRR SP RN SR

P
SEH-

s REETHEE-—THRRGHARAE
B2 REX MY IFEBEXFEAN-

o RERREBRRGEHRADRELR
EHERAWERERE L RAE
B TR B E R U B TG
2HBED-

o BREZRABEBEETR (EABHBAR
BN EREETTH ) R R EE
BEZFREE N KA B35 B B 3
FHEMBE 2SR



Annual Report 2017 « —E—tH &3]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful life to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continuead)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of costs and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
COSts necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the amount as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—=-Z
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueqd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—_T—+F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when and only when the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on the effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale ("AFS”) financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL").

Equity and debt securities held by the Company that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Company'’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognises in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including bank balances and cash, pledged fixed deposits,
accounts receivable, loans receivable, other receivables and
deposits and statutory deposits are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows have been affected. For AFS
equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
accounts receivable, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accrued expenses, and amount due to Directors are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or l0ss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognise the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate
or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment (or
a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.

118

TESEE (&)

WiE—ENE AL FEA—ER
7

EASEUBE-HEERABLTEX—
AR 5 - AN B8 R Ko e R P W R (8 Bl RT
BABENMAAERE TARELKEER
BREENAFEIKEEREENR TR
BE BEERBEEMYEEEMBER A #
MEEMBE EERLARBERYZA
HRATFE ZRXHGTEELHENHERBE
Y g o

FELEZHRBEE

WIERBEELRLEENZRASEHE
REBLERS (MIBEAFEER)K
B RIIEREEE R L EAR DB RFIEL
EoMEHEREE (KHEMAR) AT AR
BRHARHE HEGRKEBHEZE
E(RHEMER) 2 —REFKRR BBH
AIRE GRS - 5 HEK - IR B M AAGE
THE  BEEMR S BBERES —FRA
BERER/—HD TRHE-

EAKBEAKETSIRRA BB AR
ZHIEZ HERTE M A DR R
BRARIZAABEERABODERRTIEH
E THASESEENHERFREEAME
DA IR -

EAKBARETIREERBE QAR
BERRAZRELAMOKREZHEE
W& B er - & T HHE 2 ZARE LA
DREDBERFBIELE MAKEKHK
B (SO REBE) D EARBIFHEZRE
RIS BRFELREZZMY A ER
Tl



Annual Report 2017 « —E—tH &3]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies which
are described in note 3, management has made the following
estimate that has a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The key source of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed below.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
annually and when facts and circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may
exceed its recoverable amount.

For assets under construction located in Tunisia, the Group
determined whether the related well costs are expensed if it is
determined that such economic viability is not attained within
the specific area after performing further feasibility studies that
is usually completed within one year of completion of drilling.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$2,886,000 (2016: HK$2,003,000) was
recognised on assets under construction. The Group's carrying
value of assets under construction as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$Nil (2016: HK$2,886,000).

3. EEEFHE (&)

FEHEZERBEE (&)

HEBFFRE 2 IRDAE (R &4
B BAREERAFEAL ERAL
RIEHHE

A TRERRZEEZRR

RAMESMAASE S HRE BEE
ZEHATHSEAMBRRCOERSHERE
RERFEZG -REPRBBAHEER
REFTEPRFREZEERAERAEE
EARBZAEATHRERZNEZ IR
SIS

BHRRATEERE

BEREFERERBABTYR LA
BEZRHEMNRBLEATKRESE K
KAt B ESEITRERE -

ERANREADR 2 EREEE MR EH
B ARHETHE— S AT (—RR K
BRE—FATK)  DEXEINBALE
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SIERE BHE-T—tF+_A=+—
BEFE ERTEEREERRREBSELY
2,886,000/ 7t ( = Z — 7X £F : 2,003,000/
L) RZE—+F+ZA=+—H K&

£ :2,886,000% 7)) °
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Impairment of accounts receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Valuation of investment property

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent professional valuer.
The valuers have determined the fair value based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report prepared by the valuers, management
has reviewed the valuation including the assumptions and
estimates adopted.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the "SF(FR)R"). The Group's regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors,
on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. The Group's regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
both years.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. ERMITHA

Categories of financial instruments ERITEER

2017 2016
—E2—tF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Financial assets TREE

Available-for-sale securities Al E A 1,098 1,440
Loans and receivables B WG IE 497,070 603,014
498,168 604,454
Financial liabilities — amortised cost TREE-#HEKA 629,546 357,648

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include available-for-sale
securities, statutory deposits, loans receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed
deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts payable, other
payables and accrued expenses, amount due to Directors,
corporate bonds and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group's overall strategy substantially
remains unchanged from prior year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that:

o are offset in the Group’s statement of financial position; or

o are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the
Group's statement of financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC"), and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligation
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to set off on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and cash clients that are not to be settled on the same
date, deposit placed with HKSCC and brokers do not meet
the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only
enforceable following an event of default.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SRTA (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The amount offset and the net balance are shown as follows:

BEEREEEERBER (&)

HETHEERBE (&)

HEeRMERFRIIRET

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RE

Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts

receivable payable receivable payable

& e BR 3R FE 1S BR 3R & W R R ANE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TET TET

Gross amounts of cash client  IR& & F 4% 56,324 (200,182) 29,926 (169,532)

Amounts offsetting HiHSH (37,672) 37,672 (8,565) 8,565

Net amount of cash client Re®P¥H 18,652 (162,510) 21,361 (160,967)

Balance not offsetting REHEET 111,040 (15,004) 121,991 (13,270)
Allowance of provision of FHREREE

bad debt (998) = (4,359 =

Net amount presented inthe R 4R & B XA

consolidated statement of 25255

financial position 128,694 (177,514) 138,993 (174,237)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

As the Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
mainly in functional currency of respective group entities, the
currency risk resulting from daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged fixed deposits, loans receivable, corporate
bonds and borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate of bank balances,
loans to securities margin clients and amount due to Directors.
The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising
from the Group's variable-rate loans to securities margin clients
and amount due to Directors.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans
to securities margin clients and amount due to a Director
mentioned above at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2016: 50
basis point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2016: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,658,000 (2016:
HK$307,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account in
preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved is
not significant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration on bank balances as the Group
had placed the bank balances in several authorised institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Directors consider the credit risk of such
authorised institutions is low.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
accounts receivable and loans receivable, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group's liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis
by management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SRTA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HERREEEEREE (£)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELREE (&)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAEAEBR-_ZE—+tF+=_A=1+—
maturity for its financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017, the B 27 488 15629,546,0008 T 2 8 N4 #
amount of HK$629,546,000. The table has been drawn up to FEEFE  ZRREBERAEE I HE RN
reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based HxFAMRE IR EEN KRR
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. REME - ZREBEMNERASRERE
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The FEMRIEAHF RS (HAEZE) SR
interest payments are computed using contractual rates or, if EHRZBITHEGTH -

variable, based on the prevailing interest rate at the end of each
reporting period.

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average and 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12 months 1-2 year 25years  Over5years  cash flows amount
RERR
nE  H=fRA FHR
FHRIE Wa ZEXER AET=EA -EmE RELE BFNLE REWREE REE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T T TiER T T T T FEL

Financial liabilities SRER
At31December 2017 RZF-+F+-A=+-A
Accounts payable ERER - 177514 - - - - - 177514 177514
Otfer payables and accrual expenses EEAETRESER - 37,891 - - - - - 3780 3780
Amount due to Director ER-2EEHE 5% 85,305 - - - - - 85,305 85,2305
Borrowings 51
~Variable rate Bt 5% 740 748 1512 62490 - - 65,490 60,000
- Fixed rate -E8 8.8% 4,624 5398 11454 289,538 - - 311,014 251,005
Corporate bonds ARES 11.02%-
11.99% 500 500 1,087 2158 261 4839 30,695 17831
306,574 6,646 14,03 354,186 n6M 4839 707,909 629,546
As at 31 December 2016, the remaining contractual maturities RZEBE—REFFTZA=+—10 Fx5EEH
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial BERMEARZBTELAREA (RE
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash BHRURRERERAEEATHERE
flows and the earliest date that the Group can be required to pay NHEFERH) A—FRIILZERK-

are within one year or on demand.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6.
Fair values (Continuedq)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

EMTEH(E)
D¥E(EF)

o BB EREME - AFEAEREA
FEFEHABREZAIEREERAFEAE
HERASBHHEER D SZUSEASE
— B _FRE=ZFFBOT:

s FERBABEBNERNAEAHA
RBzHRBEEXRBERNERMSEZ
WE(RERE) :

s F_RBABEBNEESRBIEE
SEEAERBARE (ZE-4AHME
ERERIN) R

s FE-MBABEBNEELREBEZIAA

liability. BRig ABUE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

R BoR =R af

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H

Available-for-sale securities A it HEE % 1,098 - - 1,098
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=+—8H

Available-for-sale securities At HEF A 1,440 - - 1,440
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7. REVENUE 7. W&
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(Re-presented)
(g&E3)
Continuing operations HEREER
Sales of natural resources and AREREALCEREE
petrochemicals 47,704 =
Rental income HaBA 23,860 5,125
Commission and brokerage income Be k&Ll A 15,160 10,987
Interest income arising from CREBEEZFBRA
financial business 8,460 9,951
Advisory and consultancy fee AAERE 1,881 5,266
97,065 31,329
OTHER INCOME 8. HwA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(g&E3)
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income from bank RITH B WA - 1
Sundry income FMIEWA 415 1,256
Handling charge income FEEBWA 1,712 1,456
Placing income (=N - 800
Dividend income % 24 A 144 118
2,271 3,631
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9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 9. Htt=mNEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(Re-presented)
(K&E7)
Continuing operations HEREER
Reversal of allowance REBRBHERE
for bad and doubtful debts 2,515 2,512
Net exchange gain/(10ss) &5 lkes, (E518) F5 19 (5,105)
Fair value change on "EMEZ AT EESE
investment properties 130,420 -
132,954 (2,593)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group is
currently organised into the four operating and reportable
segments — (1) trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and gas
business (3) financial business and (4) property investment.
These revenue streams are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the Board of Directors in order to allocate resources to
segments and to access their performance.

sales of natural resources and
petrochemicals

Trading business -

Mineral mining, oil -
and gas business

exploration and production of
mineral, oil and gas

Financial business - provision of financial service,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual funds,
insurance-linked investment
plans and provision of corporate
financial services and immigration
consultancy services, and
securities margin financing

Property investment - rental income

10.

TRER

MAAREER MEBEEREE WS
RESRARRIHSERR AN IE
TR IR QRS TR 2 M A
HH

BE_T—tF+-_A=1t—HLEFE &K
SERNBNELERAZ2HRDBEKX —
MBZE: 5 HRER: QT mME
B RAMERE MFRENEEEES
EHREHNABASESEBAR 2 NEHR
EZEE AUHEZ BN REREFEZ
DEZRE -

BR%H - WERRBERRALE

[m]
al]

Rig HRES - BY BARKRAREH

RREE
TREH - RESBERE 2EK
FEL HERYER

£ EZED Res

BRAARRHREE
BERBERBRERR
B UREFTRBE

HEBA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EEHR (&)
BRI E R EEDED A AEERL
UTERZHEERNLERED R LY
i TAeE BELHERNME4-

An operating segment regarding the mineral mining in the PRC
was discontinued in the current year. The segment information
reported on the following does not include any amounts for
these discontinued operation, which are described in more
detail in note 14.

Segment revenues and results PEWEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results T RSB BREREEZ DT
by segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—+tHF+=-H=+—HLEFE

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
23 8
EHEK BRER SRER WERE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET
REVENUE [
Segment revenue SEKE 47,705 - 25,501 23,859 97,065
RESULTS £+
Segment profit/(loss) NERF/ (B1B) 265 (5,392) 36 151,288 146,197
Corporate administration costs A RIfTHE (51,719)
Profit before taxation RHELEEB 2
from continuing operations BR % AR A 94,478
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—=

10. 2 EEHR (&

—tFE+-A=+—HLEFE

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

TRWREREE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—X"F+-A=1+—HLFE
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
R
BRER BRER SRER MERE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHx FaT FHx FaT
REVENUE 62
Segment revenue SEKE - - 26,204 5,125 31,329
RESULTS ES
Segment profit/(l0ss) AR/ (BE) 756 (5,849) 2,904 (1,910 (4,099
Corporate administration costs A RI{TEL & H (35,510)
Loss before taxation SEREEEY
from continuing operations BRRAEE (39,609)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the %@% Bz gt R ARNEE G IREAE
same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit/ BeD¥EF, (BB)ETES AT
(loss) represents the financial results by each segment without BERBATS Bz KEE -E_ME
allocation of corporate administration costs. This is the measure 2

reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

1

FEEREHZIR  UDERERMTEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EER (&
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities T RAEBSBEERBEZIT:
by segment:
At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—tF+=-A=+—H
Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
23 8
EHEK BRER SRMER WERE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T THx T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets IBBE 705 1,405 334,088 745,363 1,081,561
Unallocated assets REIBEE 246,181
Assets relating to the HERFEEEE
discontinued operations BBZEE 318,821
Consolidated total assets REEELE 1,646,563
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities AEAE 24 753 276,258 65,304 342,339
Unallocated liabilities REBBE 312,462
Liabilities relating to the HERHERER
discontinued operations BEBz8E 133,403
Consolidated total liabilities REBELESE 788,204
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continuead)

10. 2 EEH (&)

N

THEERKE (&)

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—-—A"F+=-A=+—H
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
g
EV S BRER SRER MERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TET THT THT
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 78 6,694 322,510 560,810 890,092
Unallocated assets REBEE 34,897
Assets relating to the HER EEERK
discontinued operations BEBZEE 425,281
Consolidated total assets GEEERE 1,350,270
LIABILITIES =N
Segment liabilities SBEE 24 1473 264,387 4,700 270,584
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 74,701
Liabilities relating to the HER HEEER
discontinued operations BHz8E 100,578
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBEES 445,863

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
bank balances and cash for administrative purpose and
other assets including other receivables, prepayments
and deposits of head office.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
payables and accrued expenses in relation to corporate
administration costs.

RERNBRELRIEERTENEMES

BRIETTBAgR 2 RITEFRRE AR

EREREMEE (BREMERER

%A BNFRERERS)IN FBEEED
P TEESE-

ERBEESTETEENE HARA

TTRE R A 2 B e 308 KRB AT
ER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HER (&
Other segment information Hu o BEER
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment Total  Unallocated  Consolidated
i3 3
2558 BRER SRER NERE LS AAR E]
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn FiEn TEn TEn FiEn TEn
Continuing operation RELEXE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-F—t§+-A=1-H
ILFE
Amounts included in the measure of HENERR (BB %
segment profit loss) or segment assets: PEEETALEE:
Additions to fixed assets BEREEER - - - 18 18 13 31
Impairment loss on exploration and HERBHEERERE
evaluation assets - 2,886 - - 2,886 - 2,886
Amortisation 23 - 2,403 - - 2,403 - 2,403
Depreciation e - - 285 4,39 4,681 452 5,133
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts ~ BRIRER & & = = (2,515) - (2,515) - (2,515)
Finance costs HBER - - 5,133 - 5133 5,398 10,531
Interest income FEBA - - (8,460) - (8,460) = (8.460)
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Total Unallocated Consolidated
BH%H BEEH SREH nERE CES AAR Fa
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thr TAT TAR Thr TAn ThR TE
Continuing operation RELEXE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-F-—§T-A=1-H
ILFE
Amounts included in the measure of HENERR (B3
segment profit loss) or segment assets: PEEENALEE:
Additions to fixed assets BREEER - - 924 19 943 2 1,035
Impairment loss on exploration and HERBHEERERE
evaluation assets - 2,003 - - 2,003 - 2,003
Amortisation 23 - 2403 - - 2403 - 2403
Depreciation ik - - 22 4441 4723 402 5125
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts ~ BEIRER & & S S (2512) - 2512 - 2512)
Finance costs HBER - - 4,508 - 4,508 1,851 6359
Interest income LELON - - (9951) - (9951) - (9951)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

All of the activities of trading business are based in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The activities of mineral mining is based in Kenya,
while oil and gas business are based in Tunisia and Madagascar.
All of the activities of the financial business are based in Hong
Kong.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations and its non-
current assets, other than available-for-sales securities, deposit
paid for acquisition of a subsidiary statutory deposits and loans
receivables, by geographical location of the assets regarding its
operations are detailed below:

10.

PHEER (&)
i B &R

RS LB EDEREREERT
REEDESRDRT MaRAEBERRE
TS B AT 1T - S BT 2 —F
BEEBRT

BRAftLERERs WE-—BNBARCH
BE AEREREBRERIN AEERE
EZWBNESNERE 2 HERLEXD
ZWE R EFERBEEFBHT

Revenue Non-current assets
[E: kRBEE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF T RE B+t ZIZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTAT TET FHT
Hong Kong HE 25,501 26,204 1,326 6,105
Tunisia REFHE - - - 2,886
Kenya Bles - - 1,401 3,804
PRC H 69,815 2,201 598,186 526,872
Madagascar 55 2 AT AN 1,749 2,924 119,211 123,585
97,065 31,329 720,124 663,252
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq) 10. 2 EEHR (&)
Information about major customer FEEFZEH
Revenue from customers of the year from continuing WTABE_ZE—+tFR_FE—X F+=
operations ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 contributing A=+—BLFELRERBERKZEE10%
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are generated from CHEELEARBEER I BELEER
mining business as follow: R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
(Re-presented)
(g&&EY))
Customer A - Trading business EPR-ZES5E® 47,705 N/A 738 A
Customer B — Property investment BREL—MERE 15,455 N/A i@
There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of total HE-_Z—+t&Rk=Z—X~"F+=ZA
revenue from continuing operations of the Group for the years =+—BLtFE- jtﬁiﬁ1’@$*§f5§$
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. EERFEKEEHBEWE10%A Lo
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BBKEHR
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on borrowings wholly ERAFRNEBSZEERNS:
repayable within five years:
Corporate bonds YNSEEE 856 -
Borrowing BE 4,791 -
Bank borrowings and bank overdrafts RITHERBRITEX - 6
Amounts due to directors EREEHRIE 4,884 6,352
10,531 6,358
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12. TAXATION

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

. BiE
A BB REMREMER 2 FERHE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Continuing operations BEREER
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax ~ BIHAR{ 1B — F AP B> 2 PS5 B
provision for the year 12 664
Deferred tax — origination and BRI -ERNEE s EEREE
reversal of temporary difference 31,884 (1,337)
31,896 (673)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the relevant group
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profit is
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

MRBE-E—+tFR-FE—AF+A
=+ — B F AR E R 0 A R
W RSB BRFID 2 B A B
BRI - M R R TIE S E A R E SR
8%t

BREBPEARANMBEARNCEMSH A
RUEEMBRE) REXMETEZE
HeEpl FEMBARRMEFEZRER
25% °

REMBDEERES 2 R IAR AR AR
BRTHEAE AREEMBAEREE
Z M8 A B B P ME R 2 19 B R ] IR AR AR
A A AR E M BUERE R 2 FISH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. TAXATION (Continued) 12. B (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before FEMEBERESERREMEIERGRZ

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

BRI ERE RN T -

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZET—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Re-present)
(g&&E5))
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BR&EATE A (E518) 94,478 (39,609)
Taxation charge at the Hong Kong IAE B NG E16.5%1E
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% Z BB H 15,589 (6,536)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIA
for tax purpose 2B E (602) (440)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses REERGE BB EE
not recognised 2GR 966 1,172
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R
for tax purpose 2B e 8,693 6,409
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss B R SE AT R R S E 18
previously not recognised 2B E (3,520) (703)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMREER &L ZHERQ
operating in other jurisdictions TEMELTE 10,770 (575)
Taxation for the year FEMREA 31,896 (673)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

Continuing operations

Profit/(Loss) for the year has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation

Depreciation

Staff cost, including Directors’
remuneration

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme (included in staff costs)

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Loss/(Gain) from error trades

Interest income on bank deposits
(included in other income)

Operating lease in respect of
office premises

13. FE®A (BR)

2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(i&E7)
FEHA,/ (FBE) BNk
(3T A) T3 &8 -
% 6 BN & 1,265 1,180
5 2,403 2,403
e 5,133 7,724
BIRAN (BIEEENS)
28,691 27,674
BRAREMETEER (FFABIKA)
692 764
REMZ 2 FERR 47,276 =
BERRBEER, () 17 (€)
RITFERZFEMA
(FFAEMBA) (28) S
BEARAEYMEZLEHLY
5,748 6,912

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND

14. ERALEEXBRFFEHEZH

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors
resolved to dispose of the Group's operation in mineral mining
operation in the PRC. Negotiations with several interested
parties have subsequently taken place. The asset and liabilities
attributable to the business, which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal group
held for sales and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below). The net proceeds of
disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment
loss has been recognised.

The (loss)/profit for the year from the discontinued mineral
mining operation in the PRC is set out below. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income have been restated to re-present
the mineral mining operation in the PRC as a discontinued
operation.

&4 5!

BE-_ZT—tF+-A=1+—RHLEFE"
EFERBEEARERPREZ KBRS -
HECHEZZAMBR s ALETHER %X
BRIGEZEENBE (BHHRt _EAR
HE)EHBARELEZHEMAR A B AT
EEEMBRARAEBES (RTX) -
HEMSRRFERYBBEEAMEEER
BEZREE At WEERBERSE-

ERIEEETRRBEBZ2FR (BR),/
AT - R A B R EM R E KSR
ZHBBFELES BB REER
B2 RO RIEREER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND 14. ERIEREERRFEHEZE
DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE EHR (&)
(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W as - 105,240
Cost of sales &R AR - (62,323)
Gross profit EH - 42,917
Other income E A 12,573 23,262
Other gain or loss HE sk Eia 1,772 (708)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMA (1,263) (119)
Administrative expenses THEA (112,889) (15,118)
(Loss)/Profit from operation K (B8) /%5 H (99,807) 50,234
Finance cost B8R (3) (98)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BrEiA (E51E),mF (99,810) 50,136
Taxation sl (269) (8,055)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EB)#F (100,079) 42,081
(Loss)/Profit for the year from DRIMEEEBZENRN (FR),/
discontinued operations R BIEATRIEA:

including the following:

Depreciation e 24 741
Amortisation 5y 174 2,646
Interest income FEHBA (9) 7)
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the mineral
operation in the PRC as at 31 December 2017, which have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial

position, are as follows:

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

14. ERLEEXBRFFEHEZH
&4a5 (&)

RZZE—tF+A=+—H ZXEEEYD
EB2EERBBEZETZEN (REEY
BIRRKRBIZZ5) 0T -

HK$'000
FHET
Fixed assets EE&E 42,968
Intangible assets mEE 42,781
Prepaid land leases EN LS 7,005
Inventories rE 62,454
Other receivables, prepayments and HEMEWERR BARERES
deposits 118,483
Bank balances (general accounts) and WITEGF (—REP)RRS
cash 45,130
Assets classified as disposal group DEABELREZ
held for sale HEHRCEE 318,821
Accounts payable FETER 4,154
Other payables and accrual HEMEAERRRETEA 101,168
Tax payable FERT IR 16,557
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIARE 11,524
Liabilities associated with HEHEHE 2 NS A7
disposal group held for sale E@zaE 133,403

Cumulative amount of approximately HK$14,756,000 relating
to the disposal group classified as held for sale has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and included in

equity.

HAMARELE Y HEMEREH 24
S 44114,756,0008 3 £ b 2 F Mo A R
S A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

15. EERTETHAEME

Lam Nam Ng Chen Kwan Total
Hui Neil Chui Xu Kwok  Kwok Chikin Wei-Ming WangWai  Yim Kai &4
Chi Ming Bush ~ SayHoe  Junlia  CaoYu Hing Lun  Ren Qian David Eric Alan Pung 2017
FEH RERM  BER FBE B EEE EBR i BXE RE¥ BRE  BUEE —F-tf
HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Trn FHr BT AR TER  TEx  TEx  TEn  TEx  THz  THr  TEr  TER
Notec) Noteq)
(W) (#iitd)
Fegs: g
Independent Non-Executive Directors B (T2 % - - - - - - - - 50 50 50 25 175
Other emoluments to AnERZAMMS:
Executive Directors:
Salaries and other bengfits e REMER 963 600 648 950 93 2,808 984 294 - - - - 80
Contributions to refrement BRI EIER
benefits scheme 18 - - 18 18 18 18 - - - - - 90
Total remuneration e 981 600 648 968 981 2,826 1,002 294 50 50 50 25 8,475
Lam Nam Ng Chen Kwan Total
Hui Neil Chui Xu Kok Kwok Chikin -~ Wei-Ming ~ Wang Wai A
ChiMing Bush  SayHoe Jun Jia CaoYu Hing Lun David Eric Alan 2016
TEE REeAf  RER FKE EF EBF EER BEE  RE®  BRR —T%
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tér TAr  THr  TEr TR TEnr TRr AT TER  TEr TER
Noteg) — (Noted)
(Hita) (W)
Fees: e
Independent Non-Executive Directors B ##78% - - - - - - - 50 50 50 150
Other emoluments to BES AMMS:
Executive Directors.
Salaries and other henefits HEREMEN 625 600 625 600 625 2808 984 - - - 6,867
Contributions to retirement RINERI AR
benefits scheme 18 - - 8 18 18 18 - - - 0
Total remuneration ik 643 600 625 618 643 2826 1,002 50 50 50 7107
Note a:  Mr. Hui Ngok Ka changed his name to Mr. Xu Jun Jia on 4 May 2016, and Hiita: HFEREERZZT-—"FEANBERRTE
he was appointed as Director of the Company on 1 January 2016. BEE WRZZTE-—R"FEF-A—BEZEAR
NS =
Note b:  Mr. Cao Yu was appointed as Director of the Company on 1 January 2016. Kb BFEER-_TE—XF—A—BEZTAEARA
AlEE-
Note ¢: Mr. Ren Qian was appointed as Director of the Company on 5 July 2017. Kiitc: AAIEER_TE—tFLARBEZREAERA
RIEE-
Note d: Mr. Yim Kai Pung was appointed as Director of the Company on 1 July Hiatd : BEBEER-_ZT—+F A BEZITAR

2017.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2016: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 16. EEME
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group REER AEBEZAZESHFMHALTE
included three (2016: three) Directors of the Company for the B2 (ZE—RF ZR)FARAESE H
year, details of whose emoluments are included in note 15. The FHNFEBENRM TS - EBWmE (ZE—X
emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) individuals were FRMB)ATZHEST:
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e kAMET 3,300 2,869
Contributions to retirement RRENET B
benefits scheme 36 18
3,336 2,887
The emoluments of two (2016: two) individual with the highest ME(ZE—AF WMB)m=mH AT 2
emolument is within the following band: SNFTIEER :
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
No. of No. of
Emoluments band < 5 = individuals individuals
A AH
HKS$NIl to HK$1,500,000 =7 7L 21,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the REREFER  AEEFER LA+
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon RS - AR S| E N AR S B s ARk
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. TERBEEREE(E -
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17. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
For continuing operations
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

17. BRER, (FE)
BERKEEK

ARREAANEBEERERRN, (BE)
Ty T O SR &

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Earnings/(10ss): aBF, (E18)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AUGTESREARRT(EE)Z
owners of the Company for the ViN/NECTE Y DN L
purpose of basic earnings/(10ss) FEHRF (BE)
per share 61,976 (39,777)
Number of shares
igvil 2 4=|
‘000 ‘000
TR Tl
Number of shares: IR EE -
Weighted average number of AUFESREART (BB Z
ordinary shares for the purpose TR T8
of basic earnings/(loss) per share 2,521,280 1,749,158
No diluted earnings/(loss) per share was presented as there HREBE_Z—tFR_F—X~"F+=A
were no potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31 Tt ALFEYEELEER HUES

December 2017 and 2016. NEREERR, (FEE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)
For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings/(l0ss): aF, (B18)
Profit/(loss) for the purposes of

basic earnings/(loss) per share w AL (E18)

17.

ZREN(BR) (&)
FTHEREEBRCRILREEEY
ARAFEABEBELEEBROKL

REEB s BRERRF, (BBE) DET
SIBIERTHE

ARFEEREARRF, (BE) 2

2017 2016
—EB—tHF —TXRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
11,664 (4,621)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic earnings/(loss) per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK$2.00
cents per share (2016: earnings per share of HK$2.01 cents per
share), based on the loss for the year from the discontinued
operations of approximately HK$50,312,000 (2016: profit of
approximately HK$35,156,000) and the denominators detailed
above for both basic earnings/(loss) per share.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for both years.

18.

A BEEXHFRZERERRT,
(B8 FAEMRR -

BRIEREEK
ERIKEEEBRZEREABEAEER
20081 ( ZZ—RNF : BFREFEF2.01
B DR BEERECEEBE 2FAE
184950,312,000/8 70 ( = ZF — /N F 3 4
35,156,0007% 7T ) K £ SCATtat 2 B AR E A
B/ (BE)FBzETE-

Hﬁ;%\

EETRENZMEF RN RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

.
19. FIXED ASSETS 19. EEEE
Leasehold ~ Computer Furniture Motor  Construction Plant and
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  in process Property  machinery Total
RENERE ERRE HARXE RE ERIR n¥  BEREER At
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TAR TR TiEx TR TFitn TR Tign
COSsT BA
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~%¥-A-A 1,015 6,392 1978 1927 16,316 136,004 27,203 190,925
Additions #R 520 418 97 - 7574 - 3,359 11,968
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAA = @] = S = = - (0]
Disposal HE S S = S S S 2410) 2.410)
Transfer @ S (300) = 300 (14,256) 8447 5,809 -
Written-off i34 = S (55) - = = - (55)
Exchange adjustment EXRE S (18) 0 (28) (746) (752) (2018) 3571)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-~"E+ZA=1-Ak
at 1 January 2017 “%-+f-f-H 1,535 6,438 201 2,199 8,888 143,789 31943 196,853
Additions R = 19 " S 1,736 = = 1,766
Disposal i} 5 = @273 = S = (12,680) (12953
Transfer to the disposal group BRENBARELEL
classified for held-for-sales HEMR S 1) = (118) S (25997) (21,108) (47,434
Deregistration of a subsidiary FHE-HHEAR - (58) - (307) - - - (365)
Transfer e = > = (10911) 10,845 66 -
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 19 9 2 27 1,363 1779 3483
At 31 Decermber 2017 R=2-+F+=A=1-A 1535 6,257 1758 1800 - 130,000 - 141,350
DEPRECIATION bk
At 1 January 2016 W=%2-~%-A-A 1,015 5457 1,701 955 = 2423 24 13972
Provided for the year FERE 55 28 141 375 - 4,461 3,185 8,465
Written off on disposal HERHE - - - - - - (2520) (2,520)
Transfer £ = (15) - 15 - - - -
Eliminated on disposals from PEARELEL
disposal group classified LEARILERY#
for held-for-sales - 1) (55) - - - - (56)
Exchange adjustment ERRE = (12 (6) (17) - 21 (182) (233)
At31 December 2016 and RZF-AETZA=t-HR
at 1 January 2017 —2-t+5-f-H 1,070 5,677 1,781 1328 - 6,863 2,904 19,623
Provided for the year FERE m 26 109 452 - 5297 2647 8,862
Disposal HE S 5 073) = S = (2,947) (3,220
Written off on deregistration of Bl NS €
3 Subsidiary = (58) - (254) - - = (312)
Transfer to the disposal group BRENEABELEL
classified for held-for-sales AR = (166) = (118) = (1,380) (2,79) (4,466)
Exchange adjustment EHRE - 13 20 - 61 192 291
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-A=1t-H 1,181 5712 1,622 1428 S 10,835 = 20,778
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 December 2017 R=E-tF+-A=t-H 354 545 136 372 - 119,165 - 120,572
At 31 December 2016 RZZ2-~"E+-A=1+-H 465 811 230 871 8,888 136,926 29,039 177,230

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the

following rates per an

Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Property

Plant and machinery

150

num:

20% — 33'/3%
20% — 50%
20% — 40%
20% - 30%
2% — 5%
10%

FENBRERATFRHE:

E3

BEMR 5
TR
RAREE
e

ZES
BRfS R 3

20% - 33'/3%

20% — 50%
20% — 40%
20% - 30%
2% - 5%
10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20. REW=

HK$'000

FHET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 435,054
Exchange adjustment M H S8 (2,4195)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+A=+—H 432,639
Fair value change NEEEE) 130,420
Exchange adjustment ME 5 B 35,092
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+tF+=HA=+—H 598,151

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Investment properties represent a commercial unit located in
the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2017 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that day by Malcolm & Associates Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer that is not
connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method” and “Investment Method”, where the value is
assessed by reference to the comparable properties of sales
evidence as available in the relevant market, factoring in all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in
order to arrive at the comparison of capital value.

REAEERBLEHSEHEURRES K
ERRENMEEZHRARFEENXG
B YWD BRRARINEREYE-

KREMEE—BAURPEZEEEM-

AEER-_FT—tF+-_A=T—BZK
BYERFETIHEAEEYLEFE LB
VEEREXRGHEMEZEBBRFAERARR
ERZMHEEEE-

AREENRIEELBEIRIEEE B
T mEEBAEDZBEBTSAIBZAEL
BMEHEREMIT UEEETME
2B ERELNEREAREEZL
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. REWE (&)
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above T EMECERRERRE:
comprise:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties in PRC: REIYEE:
Medium-term lease FEIEE 598,151 432,639
The fair value measurements for all of the Group's investment AEBMBREMEZATEFEES S
properties are categorised as level 3. The following table ABE-HR - TREHUNMNETEEMER
gives information about how the fair values of the investment —E—+&F+_A=+—RHZAFEZE
properties as at 31 December 2017 are determined (in B (R R MR RAAA 2w ASE)
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as ARARE AT EFTEH AT 2 TERIE
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements EDBEATEAEMBATESRAE=
are categorised level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs & o

to the fair value measurements is observable.

Valuation Relationship of
Fair value technique & Significant unobservable
Properties hierarchy key input unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
fhER MR ERFHE TABERGAE
/S NTEEER FERAEE BARE HAFEzBE
Property - located Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market ~ An increase in the price per
in Beijing, PRC method and direct comparable and taking square foot will increase
investment into account location and other significantly the fair value
method individual factors such as age

and location of the property,
The key input is price approximately RMB23,655 per

per square foot square foot as at 31 December
2017
ME—R EZR ERENBEREEL FAMBEENEREMETG SFTHFRERLEABKE
FEIE R Kot 26 Ko HoAtb 18 Bl E &= (40 ENATE
TEHABE S MERBR M) BHEET
FBEFRER FREE R -_E—+F+=
A=+t—HBEF¥FRHARE
23,6557T
During the period ended 31 December 2017, there were no BHE-ZT—tF+-A=1+—HILB8HE #
transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of BRE—LRE_FEEIR LB ARE
level 3. E=Me
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BEEE

Mineral Trading
mining rights rights Total
RIERE RBRE aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT
COST AR A
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—H—H 58,444 50 58,494
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (2,945) = (2,945)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2017 r—FE—+F—F—H 55,499 50 55,549
Transfer to disposal group EHERESEABELREZ
classified for held for sales o & 487 (46,536) - (46,536)
Exchange realignment ME W 3,049 - 3,049
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZH=+—H 12,012 50 12,062
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 7,030 50 7,080
Provided for the year FREEE 4,871 - 4,871
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (184) - (184)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+_A=+—8BK
1 January 2017 —T—+%—HF—H 11,717 50 11,767
Provided for the year FERSB 2,403 = 2,403
Transfer to disposal group ERESEARBELEZ
classified for held for sales i E AR (3,755) - (3,755)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 246 - 246
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 10,611 50 10,661
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZH=+—H 1,401 - 1,401
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"FE+=ZA=+—H” 43,782 - 43,782

Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock Exchange
and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited.

Trading rights were amortised over nine years.

RPBEBIAZMEXZELREEHE
RHMBRRRz —EAXZH#-

RPEENFHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

21.

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had one mining rights in
respect of the rights granted under the Licence 253 in respect
of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056 square
kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province, Kenya.

Mineral mining rights of Kenya Mine 253 were amortised over 5
years.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

21. BLEE (&)

RZE—+tF+_A=+—H A~EEH%
B—IERERE - SPREBEBAREDEINE
52 B2 A B R M A ZIBESA
75 T 22 R 564 B 42 O5 #f & (Kitui District
Eastern Province) - E1& 471,056 F 5 A& »

BER F253MAR G RIBE IR T F#H -

22. R RMETEE

Assets
under-
construction
(Note a)
EEEE
(Ktita)
HK$'000
FET
CoST B
At 1 January 2016 RZE—-—RF—H—H 4,889
Impairment loss BEEE (2,003)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+ZA=1+—8K
at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 2,886
Impairment loss REEE (2,886)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H =
Notes: Hiat -

Assets under construction presented the cost of various kinds of oil drilling and
production equipment located in Ksar Hadada, Tunisia, from the acquisition
of subsidiaries in 2013. As at 31 December 2017, the Group carried out an
impairment review for the exploration and evaluation assets in Tunisia. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,886,000 (2016: HK$2,003,000) was
recognised in profit or l0ss in relation to the exploration and evaluation assets in
Tunisia.
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EREERFER S =FWENBATMZNEER
gEKsar Hadada & B A MR M A ER B LKA - R =T
—tFF+ZA=+—R AEEYREATZ TR
BEEBTRERS REEADZHERGHEENE
=5 {52 492,886,0007%8 7T ( =F — /< 4F : 2,003,000/ 7T.)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. EZEMEERE
The following is deferred tax liabilities recognised and RNTRREBZE_T—+tF+-_H=+—H
movements thereon during the year ended 31 December 2017: IFFERRCECERBEEERELES):
Fair value

Fair value  adjustments
changes  arising from
on investment acquisition of

properties  subsidiaries Total
WEEKE AR
REME E£X2ZAYE
AEEEE A @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H - 13,991 13,991
Credit to profit or loss BAER - (1,337) (1,337)
Exchange realignment fE 5 R - (743) (743)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+ZA=+—8
at 1 January 2017 k=ZF—tF—H—H = 11,91 11,911
Transfer to disposal group BRESEARIELEZ
classified for held for sale HE 487 - (11,524) (11,524)
Charged to profit or loss RiEzm Nk 32,605 727 31,884
Exchange realignment b 3 - 754 754
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+$+-_A=1+—H 32,605 420 33,025
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated RBEHKRE AXEEBNRSBHTHDG
unused tax losses of approximately HK$99,461,000 (2016: BB 4 599,461,000 7T (Z & — XN F:
HK$92,220,000) available for offset against future profits. No 92,220,0007 7 ) A (K S8 R 2w F) o ;AT
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such A geEERB A ] AREERS A
unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be HEE - MO ERt R E A EERER
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. RERIBEE HEEETERALE -

Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

24. AHHEES

Available-For-Sale Securities comprise: At ERESBRE:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Listed investment: EWiEE:
— Equity securities listed on Hong Kong —REBBRT LT RAES
Stock Exchange 1,098 1,440
1,098 1,440
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRmSmE 2o
Current assets MENEE = =
Non-current assets FEMBEE 1,098 1,440
1,098 1,440
25. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 25. EE®RS
2017 2016
—E—+F ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deposits with: TR THRAR 2 A :
The Stock Exchange of EBBMAERHABRAR
Hong Kong Limited 230 230
The Securities and Futures Commission 45 MHIEEHEREZES 2,100 2,100
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BERREEERAA
Company Limited ("HKSCC") (IBBEE]) 200 200
Reserve Fund Contribution to HongKong &EE BG4 EHR A R
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation  ([Hi&E&ZE QA1)
Limited ("HKFECC") ZEBESHR 1,527 1,525
4,057 4,055
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

26. LOANS RECEIVABLE 26. EWER
2017 2016
—EBE—+tE —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Fixed-rate loans receivable ATh e BB T HIE
denominated in functional 2 EBERER
currency of Hong Kong dollars 23,455 12,610
Carrying amount analysed ARHECEREE
for reporting purposes: Pakik
Current assets (receivable MEBEE (AJEWRE
within 12 months from gL AR+ AN
the end of the reporting period) B 1,480 127
Non-current assets (receivable IERBEE (A AMRSE
after 12 months from the end B AR+ —@EA%
of the reporting period) B 21,975 12,483
23,455 12,610
The fixed-rate loans receivable have contractual maturity dates EERWERZENHNBARNAT
as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—tFE T RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Within 1 year —FR 1,480 127
In more than one year —FRERFA
but not more than two years 7,055 10
In more than two years MFBRERFA
but not more than five years 13,196 -
In more than five years hEE 1,724 12,473
23,455 12,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loan receivable with a carrying value of approximately
HK$34,112,000 is secured by a property located in Hong Kong.
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the property in the

absence of default by the customer.

The effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s loans receivable ranged from
6.25% t0 8.25% per annum (2016: 5% to 8.25%). Interest rate
term is fixed at the time when entering into loan agreement. The

periods of the loans ranged from 2 years to 27 years.

In determining recoverability of the loans receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the borrowers
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period. Loans receivable with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$21,429,000 (2016: HK$12,525,000) are neither
past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group believes that the amounts are with good credit

quality. Therefore, no provision is considered necessary.

Loans receivable with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,026,000 (2016: HK$85,000) are past due as at the reporting
date but not impaired, as the Group considered the amount was
recovered subsequently to the end of the reporting period.
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26. BEIWER (&)

ARE{E4) 534,112,000/ 7T 2 U E FREANRL
REBZOEFEER -EEPABENZIE
AT AEBTNSHEXBRERZYE -

FEBERWERZERMNE (ZREGHF

R) BEF6.25%%8.25% (=T —7NF :5%

:%825%) FIEERRTLER D ERE
CERHNTIMFE_+EF-

RETEKERAISKER  AEESE R
BRABVARLEERRHREEREH
KAMEEEEBES b -NBESHKRA -

B T {E 4921,429,00058 7T ( —F — N4
12,525,000/ 7T ) 2 FE W E FR I K 3B BR TR oK
BE MASEEBEEERBEEELEEZR
o At R BB AL B -

8K T {E 492,026,000 7T (ZF — RN F:
85,0008 7T ) Z EWE RN & A M @
BRBE RESANEERRZRBERRE
HRAKRE WD -
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27. PREPAID LAND LEASES

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. M LEE

Total
&H#
HK$'000
T
COST 2
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF— ﬂ H 7,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary W e — B A (475)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE— /\EWL A=+—HK
at 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 7,025
Transfer to disposal group classified L%éf\“ HARIEHEZ
for held-for-sale HEAA R (7,517)
Exchange adjustment M H SRR 492
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZA=+—H -
Amortisation By
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—HA—H 151
Provided for the year FERE 177
Exchange adjustment M H SRR (18)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—ARF+ZA=+—8K
at 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 310
Provided for the year FEEE 174
Transfer to disposal group classified ERESDHEAREHEZ
for held-for-sales HEAAR (512)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 B 28
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-HA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZHA=+—H -
At 31 December 2016 RZEBE-—RE+HA=+—H 6,715
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. PREPAID LAND LEASES (Continued) 27. FA{TLEE (&)
2017 2016
—B—+E —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current portion BNHEAER 7 - 169
Non-current portion FEBNEREL 5 - 6,546
- 6,715

28. INVENTORIES 28. &

2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw Material R - 910
Finished goods LUK o - 56,152
- 57,062
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

29. FEUWERRX

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Accounts receivable consist of: FERERRBIETHIIER -
Accounts receivable arising from RKARABRERAERE DEK
business of trading natural resource T EE 4 2 FE U BR 3K
and petrochemical 629 -
Accounts receivable arising from REMEEBRREEZ
business of properties investment FEUAR K 24,605 1,681
Accounts receivable arising from BMEBFEE
mineral business JE s AR 5K - 56,855
Accounts receivable arising from the BEEBSFEBMEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEURR K :
- Cash clients - REEP 15,841 17,275
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B - RERBE (941) (4,296)
14,900 12,979
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing —BEAPREEBRAF
Company Limited (“HKSCC") ([BBHEE]) 2,811 4,086
Accounts receivable from Hong Kong BEEHEAGNEBMELE
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation  FEWE S H S & EHRE A 7
Limited ("HKFECC") arising from the ([HRE#ERR])ER
business of dealing in futures contracts 1,390 3,416
Loans to securities margin clients BTEHREBSEBEFPZEX 84,410 58,951
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts ks REREE (57) (63)
84,353 58,888
Accounts receivable arising from B ERBRER
the business of advisory for FTEE A 2 FE U BR 3K
financial management 6 1,088
128,694 138,993
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. FEWBRX (&)

An average credit period for accounts receivable from trading
business is 30 days. The accounts receivable from trading
business aged within 90 days.

An average credit period for accounts receivable from mineral
business is 60 days. The aged analysis of accounts receivable

arising from mineral business is as follow:

Accounts receivable from mineral business

KEEZEBREIERZ FHEERR30
A-REESEHEBER KK /08
I?(Jo

REEMEBRKER 2 FHEER R
H - BYWEBEE 2 BBERZ KRBT
T

B R ER B WRR

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

0 - 180 days 02180H = 55,938
More than 180 days 180H A £ - 917
- 56,855

The Group does no provide any credit term to its property
investment client. The accounts receivable from investment
property business aged within 90 days.

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC, HKFECC and brokers are usually one to two days after
the trade date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash
clients as mentioned below, the accounts receivable from
HKSCC and HKFECC aged within 30 days.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand and
bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by OCBC Wing
Hang Bank Limited plus 3% equivalent to 8.25% per annum for
both years. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.
The loans are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair
value of approximately HK$353,385,000 (2016: HK$194,491,000).
The average percentage of collateral over the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2017 is ranged from 118% to 6,828%
(2016: 113% to 7,467%). The fair value of pledged marketable
securities of the individual margin clients is higher than the
corresponding outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to
sell or repledge the marketable securities if the customer
default the payment as requested by the Group. The Group had
provided the allowance for doubtful debts for securities margin
clients with reference to the portfolio held and the subsequent
settlement of each customer.

The Group does not provide any credit term to its advisory for
financial management clients. The aged analysis of accounts
receivable arising from the business of advisory for financial
management clients is as follow:

Accounts receivable from advisory for
financial management clients

29. BUWERRK (#£)

EAKEE /A FORA TR S 8
WA REEEE N F R 2R ERE
AEBEEHEHEE TRBERREMER-

BHERBEBEPZERERERKE
E&Tﬁzﬁ BXKZFIRITER R A FTBRE A &
@%ﬂ?—‘j}%%(ﬁﬁfli&ﬁ*ﬁ—rﬁiﬂ%
825% )t E-BEERAE ARBERIITIL
ﬁﬁ%%%&tﬂﬁﬁﬁmwﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁo%

LA A F {E #9353,385,000% 7t (—ZF — X
¢ 194,491 ooo/%rz)szﬁafﬁﬂmbu #H1E
BER-RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—8 ' xE&
B4 %ZfﬁﬁuuZIﬁEﬂhb)l?ﬂ8%i
6,828% ( ZZF—XF  113%E7,467% ) ° &
FRFECRFPFZERMRAESF 2 ATE
ERARRERER AEEEENEFH
Kﬁglﬁﬁgﬂi%lﬁﬁ FEH s BEERR

BH - AKEC2EZBFFRESCEFER
z%xé%ﬁfa\&ﬁl{é%:iﬁﬁﬁ HBHFRES
BEPATIRRER M-

AEBEYEAVKERLZAEZBT R
ERAEER -MBEERARBEFPELL
FEURR R Z BREC D ATIA T -

REVBERBAXRBREF 2EW
,E\'Err\)\

2017 2016

—E—tF C—T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THETT

0-90 days 0Z290H 6 243
More than 90 days 90H A £ - 845
6 1,088
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29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. EWER (&)
The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two days ReBPzEERRERXHAHE—F
after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts receivable WMHE -BReRFPEEZEBERR ZRER DT
arising from cash clients is as follows: N
Accounts receivable from cash clients EWHREEFERX
2017 2016
—EBE—+tE —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
0-90 days 0£90H 14,646 11,175
91 - 180 days 912180H 254 1,804
14,900 12,979
The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying RERE KA BREEA A3,659,0007 7T
amount of approximately HK$3,659,000 (2016: HK$6,139,000) ZE—NF 16,139,000/8 70 ) 2 FEWIR &
are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period. EPERDEHERERE -BRERER
The average age of the amount past due but not impaired BFREZ FHREA0EBR (ZF—R4F:
is within 30 days (2016: within 30 days). In the opinion of the 0AAN) EFLEMEHERAKIEED
Directors, no significant accounts receivable from advisory for WHEEBARR RZE—tFR_T—RK
financial management clients and cash clients are impaired at FHZA=1+—H WEEKVEEEZT
31 December 2017 and 2016 with reference to the subsequent ¥BREFPRASEPZERNERERE-
settlement received after the end of the reporting period.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful ReEFRRBHEZ2E
debts of cash clients
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FUEER 4,296 6,786
Provided for the year IF[E B = =
Amounts recovered during the year RF F W E A (1) (2,489)
Amounts written off as uncollectible Hif &8 71 BT W (B 3R IR (3,354) (1)
Balance at end of year FREH 941 4,296

164



Annual Report 2017 « —E—tH &3]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. EWERTX (4#Z)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful FEREEEFREREREZEH

debts of securities margin clients

2017 2016

—EBE—+tE —ETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Balance at beginning of the year FUE# 63 86

Provided for the year FAEE 5 15
Amounts recovered during the year REZWE S5 (11) (38)

Balance at end of the year FIREER 57 63
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of cash clients ReBPRBFRESEFPRERERRE
and securities margin clients are individually impaired accounts Y —EEHREVRRE 2 E P 2 @5
receivable due from clients who have been in severe financial ERERKEN BHFRESEPBREED
difficulties. For the securities margin clients, the amount was KERHEAEEMFHEBCERTARSE

arrived at after considering the proceeds from disposal of FZFTISEIBREE

respective pledged marketable securities held by the Group.
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29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. BRI (&)
In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, the 7N 55 [ 70 788 TE M WA BR R 2 BT UK [ A
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts EERBYAREEERREEEREH
receivable from the date credit was initially granted, subsequent HiFvEWEFREEER ER&ERR
settlement and the fair value of pledged marketable securities REBERREIF 2 A TEZE@NEL-
up to the reporting date. In the opinion of the Directors, there EERA BAENRBEREBEUNIINZE
is no further credit provision required in excess of existing — S EERE-

allowance for doubtful debtors.

30. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 30. HitEUWERR - B IERIES
DEPOSITS

2017 2016
—E—tF E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Other receivables H A E U BR SR 6,220 102,582
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUEE IR 25 3R 0R

interests (note) (K7at) - 48,324
Rental and other deposits HekEMmiEze 1,502 1,503
Prepayments TEfT 5RIE 105 25,501
7,827 177,910

Note:  Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest free Hiat: EHGEIERERRIBAERR 28 RIZERK

and recoverable on demand. EIKS
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31. PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSITS, BANK

BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts)

The pledged fixed deposits represented the amounts pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
The pledged fixed deposits carry interest rates at 0.225% (2016:
0.225%) per annum and will be released upon the expiry of the
relevant banking facilities. Included in pledged fixed deposits
(general accounts) is approximately HK$5,239,000 (2016:
HK$5,229,000) which is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group’s ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing market
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.1% (2016: 0.01% t0 0.15%)
per annum. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. However, the Group
does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.

Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates at 0.01%
(2016: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in bank balances (general accounts)
and cash are approximately HK$625,000 (2016: HK$627,000)
and HK$1,361,000 (2016: HK$43,527,000) and which are
denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

1. EERERER RITEFR

BE
EHEAEHER (—REKF)

EEARERFRESMEARTE —RIR
TREMARITEFLZERSR -CER
ERERZMERREF0225% (ZF—X
F:0.225%) RAEBRTHE DN HKRE
Bt ACEREHER(—REP) 2L
5,239,000/ 7T ( =& — /X % : 5,229,000/%
LA EEMER 2 IERE XTI
B

RITERF (EERBLERF)

AEERABERBETXEE R MK
URHEEFZER - ZRERPZHAFA—
B % @B RITIRP WILRITHIH TR
FENFEF0.01%ZE0.1% (ZF—RF:
0.01%Z%E0.15% ) 7 B - NEE R EN G 7
P Z MR - AT 7 R B IR A 3 Al
TN FREEZFRMAER

RITEF (—RERFIRERE

tEeBEEEAEEFEAE 2R e RIRRIT
MEEFERMNEREF0.01% (ZT—NF:
0.01%)sFEBEREBMAA=M@AHIUT
ZRHRITER - GFARITET (—RE
F) KIRE 2 #625,0008 T ( ZF—RF:
627,000 7T ) }1,361,0005 7t ( = ZF — /X
£ :43,527,0008 7T) 7RI AETT R AR
5IE -
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32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 32. FEFERRX

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Accounts payable from mineral business & ¥ 2 7 Fr &= 4 e (5 BR 30 - 4,301
Accounts payable from properties VIR EMESENERR
investment 33 =
Accounts payable arising from BEEBRFEBMEERNER:
the business of dealing in securities:
- Cash clients - REEP 159,252 157,198
- HKSCC —EBBEE 3,403 3,769
Accounts payable to clients arising BEEMEENEBMELEZ
from the business of dealing FERE P RN
in futures contracts 2,543 3,797
Amounts due to securities margin clients EMZESFREL B KIE 12,280 5,172
Accounts payable arising from W E R B RER
the business of advisory FITEE 4 FESHBR X
for financial management 3 -
177,514 174,237

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and BNREEFPREBEERRZEEHR

HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30 days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures contracts are margin deposits received from clients
for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The excess
of the outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on demand. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as the
aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

168

RRXZHEBEMA  HEREA30H A -

BEEHNERNXBMELEZERNEPENR
DRARRMEEERREEREANAT
PR zZFkER REEXHEBHHPES
HRAIMRERE S ZHBAR BRKEE
ETEP -EERA ARKEBRITLEER
- B W E B UL F A -

ENEFREEEPRRBARERKEE -
E=ZRA ARKREOTLERSE Bt
R UL VR BT EE



Annual Report 2017 « —E—tH &3]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE

32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$163,219,000 (2016: HK$156,816,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.

Accounts payable from mineral business

32.

FESBRRR (42)
RETRREEHBRFRE SRR

BEERMBYURTHEEMERNEPHEM
W 2 N BR 49 /3163,219,00008 7T (=
T — K% 156,816,000 7T ) o AT - A&
B30 B W A TR AT R SR
R -

REBBYER 2 BN IRK

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHT
0-90 days 0Z90H8 - 830
90 - 180 days 90Z180H - 3,471
- 4,301

Accounts payable from properties investment MEREFMELERBMAERMN
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHT
0-90 days 0Z90H8 33 =
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

33. HttENRRARESTER

EXPENSES

2017 2016
—E-RE ZZ=—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Other payables H b~ 3008 34,988 24,634
Accrued expenses EEtE A 2,889 5,139

Receipts in advance from B 5 %1% BGRIA
trading business 14 64,064
37,891 93,837

34. AMOUNTS DUE TO A DIRECTOR

34. B —RESENE

ENEZFRSEER  RKFRITHREN
EERBEMNE (ZT—RF  kFTRITR

Amounts due to Directors are unsecured, interest bearing at )
BEHNBEREBRMNR)FFHERAREX

Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited (2016:
Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited) per

annum and are repayable on demand. BiE-

35. BORROWINGS 35 BE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Borrowing BE 311,005 -
Secured i 251,005 -
Unsecured R 60,000 -
311,005 -
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued) 35. fBEE (&

The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows: REBZEEEBEENT
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year —FR - =
After 1 year but within 2 years —EMF 60,000 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF 251,005 -
After 5 years hE% = -
311,005 =

The movement of borrowings is as follows: BEEZHWNT:

2017 2016
—E2—tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
As at 1 January ®n—H—H - -
Proceeds from new borrowings BB MSHRIE 310,000 -
Accrued interests FERT & 4,791 =
Interests paid ERFE (3,786) -
31 December ®"+=—A=+—H 311,005 -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has borrowing of
approximately HK$251,005,000 which was secured by the entire
registered capital of Beijing Yinghe Property Development
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
and guaranteed by Guangdong Hoifu Wai Yip Investment
Management Limited and the personal guarantee from Dr. Hui
Chi Ming. The borrowing is fixed-rate interest at 7% for the first
year and 8% for the period after 1 year. The effective interest
rate of the borrowing is 8.8% per annum.

RZE—+tF+A=+—H K&EEZE
§#9251,005,0007% 7T 5 LA 7~ 5 B sl 2 & &
BARIERANEHERAFERRARL
2RGEMEAEER YARERINERER
BEEARARRIFE®HBL ZEAERE
ER-BEREFRETEMERI%E  M—
FRIZ8%:T B - EEZERFNES8.8%
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has borrowing
HK$60,000,000 was unsecured which borrowed from Asia Tele-
Net and Technology Corporation Limited (“ATNT"), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares being listed on the
Stock Exchange in which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing
and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests. The borrowing is
fixed-rate interest at Hong Kong Prime rate of 5% per annum.

36. CORPORATE BONDS

Unsecured corporate bonds EEWARES

35. BB (&)

N_E—+FE+_f=+—H AEB2E
E60,000,00078 7T A& IR - B TN AERHE
BRAR(TEMEA]D (—HMRaRES
MLz AR DR RET LT M5
EEEEELERER GBI E RS L ERE
m) R -ZEEREESERETEFAEX
5%zt 2.

36. AEIEZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
19,312 =

The Group's corporate bonds are repayable as follows:

AEBZEREERARESFNAT:

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FHET

Within 1 year —FE R - _
After 1 year but within 2 years —EWF = S
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF 16,078 -
After 5 years hFE 3,234 =
19,312 =
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36. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of corporate bonds is as follows:

\

36. AEIEH (&)

RAEFEHIT

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

As at 1 January Rn—A— - -
Proceeds from new borrowings FEEMSRIE 19,210 =
Accrued interests FEET B 856 -
Interests paid BAF A (754) =
31 December R+-—A=+—H 19,312 =

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group issued
bonds with a principle amount in a total of HK$21,000,000
carried interest at 7% per annum. Total transaction cost
attributable to the issuance of the bond amounted to
HK$1,790,000. The bonds are unsecured with maturity date
falling on 4-7.5 years of the issue date.

The effective interest rate of the bonds is ranging from 7.03% to
11.57% per annum.

BE—
rEE

—+F+-_A=+—HULEEE
1T B4 ££21,000, OOO%EZE

CaE s iﬂ$7%aﬁr§ BITEHFELEZR
FX 7 48 %8 431,790,000/ T © ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
MEIBAAB#ETHBE MIZTSFE

Eo

BHEZEBRFERNENT7.03%E11.57% °
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B
Number of
shares
REE
‘000 HK$'000
Tz FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREAEI0E L Bk
Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 N_E-RERZE—LF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2016 RZE—-—RF—H—H 1,650,238 165,024
Share repurchased and cancelled (note a) R 1D BE B K s 88 (fita) (14,672) (1,467)
Issue on 28 July 2016 (note b) RZEB—RFEELAZ+N\BET
(H1atb) 50,000 5,000
Issued in consideration ERWBNREMmET (Hite)
for the acquisition (note ¢) 835,714 83,571
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZE—REFERZT—+F
+ZA=+—8H 2,521,280 252,128
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

a)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follow:

37. REK (&

a)

No. of

ordinary
shares of
HK$0.10 each
BREE
0.108 T2

Month of repurchase B | A 4

January 2016 —T-RF—A
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's listed securities during the year.

Pursuant to subscription agreement dated 14 July 2016 entered into
between an independent third party (“Subscriber”) and the Company,
Subscriber subscribed for 50,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 in the
Company at price of HK$0.70 per share. These new shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 14 July 2016. All the issued shares rank
pari passu in all respects “with other shares in issue. The net proceeds
raised are intended to be used for general working capital and future
business development and investments of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has issued
835,714,284 ordinary shares for acquiring 100% equity interest of
Millhaven Holdings Limited.

ZERHE

14,672,000

BEZZ—ARE+ZA=T—BILFE £QF
FEREEBMARIMERDABREEARF G
T~

Price per share Aggregate
FRERE consideration
Highest Lowest paid
53] B 2fRaRE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT FET
0.7 0.5 8,326

FR-ARFEMNBLBMERA  HEIEEA
RAUEA LT E S

BIE—BBIE=7 ([REA]) BARQBEIL
AAE—ZT—A"FLA+HNAZRERZ RF
ARG R0.707% 7T 2 B 1% + 3R #550,000,0000% & A%
EE0. 10T 2 AN A RFRAS  ZE ARG TR IR
RZZE—ANFtA+HARBITARRREBSF
ARELBEFESZ REERT -FABRITR
MREFEREMDEITRNZE RS AT
EEVBRBFEREASEE—REEESR
RREBEERIRER G-

HE_Z—R"FTZA=+—RILFE K27

2 st U BE Millhaven Holdings Limited 2 2 B A% 4 ¢
17835,714,2841% & 3@ A% o
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38. FERES
The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that BEEAEERERZASEIIEZENS
have material non-controlling interests shown as below: RAZFIBYRIAT
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held Profit/(Loss) allocated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
Name of business interests interests non-controlling
Subsidiary SE R Lt B FERERFEZ DETFIHFERER interests
MEARERE FEEEMY FIERERRIREELLA ZaA, (E8) R FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

—E-tF T F ZB-tF —T-RF ZB-tF T KF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr FTAT TERr FTAT

Beibuwan Yuchai Energy PRC/PRC

Chemical Co., Ltd. FEHE

(“Beibuwan Energy”)*
JbEPE S ae R T N/A N/A N/A

BRAR ([EEBEEIR]) * FiE A 35% FEA (4,654) TEA 59,926
Hebei Panbao Zeolite PRC/PRC

Technology Ltd FEHE

(“Hebei Panbao”)
AL EERARRERAR
(D& ]) 45% 45% (49,854) 6,306 15,510 65,364

Individually immaterial

subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BRFERERZ
{851 3E & KB J&§ 22 7] (821) (9,049) 6,357 7,281
(50,675) (7,397) 21,867 132,571
*  Deregistrated in August 2017 * RZFE—+FEN Aty
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Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
are set out below. The summarised financial information below
represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.

38.

FIERER (F)

BRABEAFERER  ASEEWNEB
RAZHERBEER BTN T - A TR E
BERREEANR R AT 2 858 -

As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Hebei Panbao Beibuwan Energy
ST EE 1 EB & gE IR
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+t&F ZT—REF —E—tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHEx FHET
Non-current assets EmBEE 92,527 97,969 - 49
Current assets MENEE 99,782 134,465 - 172,560
Current liabilities mENBE (140,181) (76,411) = (1,392)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (11,524) (10,769) = 5
40,604 145,254 - 171,217
Equity attributable to EN/NEIEZ =N
owners of the Company FEfEHE R 75,211 79,890 - 111,291
Non-controlling interest FEfE R 2 (34,607) 65,364 - 59,926
40,604 145,254 - 171,217
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

38. RIS (&)

For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEE
Hebei Panbao Beibuwan Energy
ST EE 1t 6 BE R
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF —ZE—tF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET FERT FHET
Revenue Lo = 105,240 - -
Other income HAb WA 2,965 110 707 -
Expenses Tt (113,750) (82,001) (460) (1,667)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (B8, EH (110,785) 23,349 247 (1,667)
Other comprehensive FEHEMEE
income/(expenses) Wk, ()
for the year 3,376 (5,134) - (11,630)
Total comprehensive FEEHE
(expenses)/income (X)) MWz4esE
for the year (107,409) 18,215 247 (13,297)
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: FEAE (B518) % F)
Owners of the Company VN/NIE 2 SN (60,932) 12,842 161 (1,084)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R 2 (49,853) 10,507 86 (583)
(110,785) 23,349 247 (1,667)
Total comprehensive 2|
(expenses)/income (), Mz mess:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREA A (59,074) 11,909 161 (8,643)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR B 2 (48,335) 6,306 86 (4,654)
(107,409) 18,215 247 (13,297)
Net cash inflow from: KENATEEZ
WEMAFE
operating activities K EE (11,066) 2,709 247 (1,667)
investing activities KREEY - 2,619 - -
financing activities A& E B 5,300 = - =
Net cash (outflow)/inflow B Gid),/ mAFEE (5,766) 5,328 247 (1,667)
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39. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

39. KEHEY
AEEEREBEA

RBERRE AEEARBHEMEZT
Al EESHARETHA - E NI S R R &K

operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as e
follows:
2017 2016
—E2—tF TR

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 4,718 3,455
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BREEREMF) 1,903 3,486
6,621 6,941

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.

The Group as Lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease income under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

REBOFBREARERBRAEDEREN
2% HOXTBRFHMFHER  mA
HAZHEEEE -

REBERHEA
RBEHRE ARERBEEME 27

KRR ETHMARKERS
WA

follows:

2017 2016
i

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year —FR 11,072 21,110
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZEFRF (BREEMF) - 10,592
11,072 31,702

Operating lease income represent rentals receivable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.

REHEWABAEERBAZHEYE
Rl zHEE HONBREERBE S TOM
FoUREEBRENEE -
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

41.

Mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”)

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group
has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income with a
cap of HK$1,500 (2016: HK$1,500) per employee per month. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of a subsidiary

0On 28 July 2017, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Hoifu Group Investment Holdings Limited
("Hoifu Investment”), a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company pursuant to the Group agreed to acquire and Hoifu
Investment agreed to sell the entire issued share capital New
Guangdong Merchants Investment Holdings Limited (“New
Guangdong”) and its shareholder loan, at the consideration
of RMB1,100 million of which RMB100 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$118,757,000) will be satisfied by payment
of cash as a refundable deposit and RMB1,000 million will be
satisfied by issuance of 5-year zero-coupon convertible note
with principal amount of RMB1,000 million. As at 31 December
2017, RMB100 million has been paid in cash as a refundable
deposit for the above acquisition.

The acquisition constituted a very substantial acquisition and
connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rule and subject
to the independent shareholder approval. On 13 February 2018,
the acquisition was approved by independent shareholder. At
the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the acquisition was completed and New Guangdong becomes a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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40.

41.

RN E
BEM ARS8 ([BREFTE )

REHEAREFTERPIETR  AREE
RIFRHIEDTE S F BRG] Z R A R AR B
RIEAREE - RBEEFECEE 1D
FRNBYEERESARA AKEDETR
EXREHRTRE RAEREEABAKA
S%fEH R ERAERETHE H1,5008
T (ZE—RF:1,50087T) - RN EE
BB o

HEMEEREE
WEE—EHE L

R-E—tFtA-+/\B AE@EEYE
EEBEERBRAT ([EEE’E]) (K
RAATEERIERBRRTS®HIET2E
BBEZRRDIVEERZ BEAEER
EWBRIERERELENEmRER
BRAEBRDR ([FER]) 22HEHTRA
RERFER  R{ERARE1,100,000,000
7T E A R #100,000,0007T (18 & R4
118,757,000/ 7 ) 5 AR € X E B AT R
B4 & ARE1,000,000,0007C# AT
N4 %8 A A R #1,000,000,0007T 2 F1 4 HA
TRABRREBRAAIN - RZT—LF
+=ZA=+—8"' AR%100,000,0007T 2
NRESX R EMKBEE JRER

2N
;e

WREERBK —HFEERNBREAER
 (ERRLEWRA) RAGELRRIE
BRAOAFEE-R-_ZT—N\F_A+=H K
BEHEESBEYRRIE WBEERZE
FE M BRREAE BT R EEK
RAEEZ2ENBAR -
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

However, at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the initial accounting for the business combination
is not yet completed.

Detail of the transaction were set out in the Company Circular
dated 28 February 2018.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary not
constituting a business

tRBAEMEFESHERBERAA

In November 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity
interestin It RBMEMESFEREBRAT ([IERA
A1) for a consideration of RMB50,000,000 in cash and
issuance of 835,714,284 ordinary shares of the Company
from Golden Nova Holdings Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, a Chairman and controlling
shareholder of the Company. The principal assets of 1t &
Z2F0 comprises investment properties situated in the PRC.
This acquisition of a subsidiary has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets as 3t = & A0 principally engaged in
property holding and does not have operations as at the
acquisition date. The identifiable net assets acquired are
as follows:

41.

42.

HmEHERER (&)

WiE—EHRELR (&)

RAM - NESFHEEMBRREMLERS X
BaM 2N ETBE R ARTK -

=1l

THEBENARFTESHA-_T-NFZ
AZ+N\BZBK-

WK E LR

(@ WE—BHRBATLTEEK—
BAR5

IRBAEEFSHRERA A

RZE—R"F+—A KAEBMU
B4 AR ¥50,000,0007T & 317
835,714,284k A AR E @R 2 R EM
ARREBRIERBRTESHE L2
& ¥ A 2 A A)Golden Nova Holdings
Limited BBt B ME M ESL A B
ABRAR ([dERBEF ) 2 2 SR HE
IRBNNEEZEERRBURTED
BEME - RRREMNBRARIESER
BEWRBAR WWIHRIERZME
EREMEER BERRER L E
KEEE - FTWB RIS EENEE
LN
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  42.

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary not

182

constituting a business (Continued)

LT B E 4R A B 8 A R 43 & (Continued)

WIBKHE AR (&)

(@) WE—BEHEARLTEA—
HR S (#&)

tRBNEMEGEHEERA A
(%)

HK$'000
T
Investment properties "EME 435,054
Bank balances and cash RITHEGENES 12,268
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H At AR K (3,356)
443,966
Satisfied by: ARSI A -

Cash consideration ReRE 56,208
Issue of shares BTG, 387,758
443,966

Cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE RS R
Cash consideration ReRE 56,208
Bank balances and cash acquired FrgsRTHFERRS (12,268)
43,940
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42. WEEMEB AR (&)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMELRQF
Tianjin Panbao International Trading Limited RETEERXEMESZERAF
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE-_Z— "+ A=+—8H1
disposed 100% equity interest in X 2 2 & 52 X B[R 2 FE AEEMBUF-FHFHERSE
ZABR AR (Tianjin Panbao International Trading Limited*) BEB I RETRERAERES
which engaged in trading business to an independent ERAFZZ2HKRE RERARE
third party for the consideration of RMB3,000,000. The net 3,000,0007T * 5% Ff /@B 2 7] A & B 8B
assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as ZEEFENT:
follow:
Consideration received: 2WRE: HK$'000
FHT
Cash received BEWE e 3,506
Analysis of assets and liabilities REERMZEEREBBZSN:
as at the date of disposal:
Property, plant and equipment I ER N 3
Trade and other receivable B 5 R H A FE W AR 58,414
Inventory wE 300
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 60
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR (54,454)
Net assets disposed of BEHECEEFAE 4,323
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HE—MMB AR ZEE (817)
Satisfied by: AT5A KA
Cash consideration RERE 3,506
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRESRAEE:
Cash consideration RERE 3,506
Less: Bank balances and B EHERTETERES
cash disposed of (60)
3,446
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43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, part of the
consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries comprised
issuance of shares of the Company. Further details of the
acquisitions are set out in note 42(a).

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities and
futures dealing of approximately HK$31,000 and HK$1,000
separately (2016: HK$27,000 and HKS$ Nil separately) from
close family members of two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok
Hing and Nam Kwok Lun.

(b) During the year, the Group received commission
income and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$5,000 (2016: HK$31,000) from ATNT, in
which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam
Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2017, an executive Director, Mr. Nam
Kwok Lun, advanced approximately HK$85,305,000 (2016:
HK$129,605,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group
paid finance costs of HK$2,951,000 (2016: HK$4,508,000)
to the executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$2,460,000 (2016: HK$2,400,000) to Gahood Holding
Company Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive Director of the Company.
The transaction also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. ERFBRERS

44.

S

g VAN Sy ey _—I—*Elﬂzir

WEHBAR I RERERETAR

ROREL I EE S rd iﬁ\%ﬂ%ﬁ
42(a) °

BREALRS

BEALRS

BRZFRAMBHRREMEBPAREESN
REH

S

©

ZBEALXRZMT:

RAFEEN AEBHRELARPEE
BEoRAMEESERHELE RER
i % A 2 3 U & WA R B fth 78
%8 &7 WA A31,000% 7T K. 1,0007%
L ( ZZE—RF : 9 51A27,0008 7T K
=& o

RAEERN AREREFEEA D
MR (MEEFERELENER
AL HEEET G #E) WA T
AR E AU A KI5,0008 7T (ZF—X
% : 31,000/ 7T ) °

)‘EA:;*JCEJr*H =t+—H #1778

BE B 90 Ak A1 AN S [ EA 3R #985,305,000
/%71(—5 /\i- 129,605,000/%7E)
FAN AEERPTESERBLE
A B S B F2,951,00008 7T ( —ZF— X
F 4,508,000/ 7T ) °

HE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—8HL*F
J*zkilwm#“*%%%%éfﬁmﬁz&
RAMTESHTEHBLIHAE2ER
B EEBRERARSTNRERSLH
2,460,000/ 7T ( == — 7 4F : 2,400,000
WIL) o FZIAR B IRE K T AR Bl B 8%
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

45.

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(e) As at 31 December 2017, outstanding advances from
a Director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, amounted to HK$Nil (2016:
HK$24,033,000).

() At 31 December 2017, the Group advanced
HK$60,000,000 from related company, PAL Finance
Limited ("PAL"), in which two directors of the Group
Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, having
controlling interest. During the year, the Group paid
finance costs in total of HK$2,182,000 to PAL.

e MR MR

—tFE+-A=+—HLEFE

44. BEANLXRF (&)

BEALRS (&)

e MNZEBE—+F+-A=+—8 Elk—
HEETERHRE L AREERRAT

P IT (ZF— 74 : 24,033,000% 7T) °
 RZEBE—+F+ZRA=+—8B F5EH

W ENABEMEEMBERDE
([EMEE]) (FREEMEERER
EBEraMERMTEREEEED)
Z B 58 /360,000,000 7T £ N - AN
BN TEMNEEZHMBERARR
2,182,000 7T ©

compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAS ZEHMH
The remuneration of Directors during the year were as follows: FRNEEZHMEOT:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Short-term benefits %= HATR A 8,385 7,017
Post-employment benefits RIREF 90 90
8,475 7,107
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEWMemTFWEESZKENALZRIR

remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

45.

EMZBEEE-

TENRBLF

TEREJNESRRYAKEXENEESR
TBFEZARAEMBRR -EERA
REHEMHBRARZFRESRBENIT

§0
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. TEMB LT (£)
Proportion of
Country/ Issued and nominal value of
place of Principal fully paid issued share capital
incorporation place of share capital held by the Group
Name SMA L business BRTR rEERE Principal activities
E4 A/ % TEEERY BRRE BRTRAEELS TEEER
2017 2016
ZB-tf 2%
% %

BAt BAK

Karl Thomson British Virgin Hong Kong HK$10 100 100 Investment holding
Financial Group Limited Islands ("BVI") BE 1087 REER
REEHEEERAA KERAHE
([EBRR#E])
Karl-Thomson Securities Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 100 Securities dealing
Company Limited Bk 5 5,000,000 7 and broking
BEEFERAA BHEEREL
Karl-Thomson Commodities Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 100 Futuresand
Company Limited BE BE 5,000,000 7 options broking
BEERREERAR HE R HELL
Karl Thomson Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100 100 Securities margin
Finance Limited BB 0 20,000,00078 7T financing
BEHEERAR BERESRE
Karl Thomson Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Money lending
BEBHERAR 5 BE 10,0005 7T B8
Karl Thomson Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 Broking of mutual funds
Consultants Limited Bk 0 1,000,000/ 70 and insurance-linked
BERBEMERAT investment plans
and products
BEHER REEE
REFERERSL
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. TEMB LT (£)
Proportion of
Country/ Issued and nominal value of
place of Principal fully paid issued share capital
incorporation place of share capital held by the Group
Name SMA L business BRTR rEERE Principal activities
2% A%/ % TEEEREY BRRE BRTRAEELS TEER
2017 2016
ZB-t§F  ZEF
% %

Bt BAK

Karl Thomson Financial Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$600,000 51 51 Corporate finance aavisory
Advisory Limited BE 0 600,000% 7 TEREER

RERERBARAA

Hoifu Energy International BVI Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Trading in natural resources
Trading Company Limited RERIHS BE 1008 7T AREREH

IERRERESERAR

Hoifu E nergy Hoidings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
AERRERARA RERAES 0 100%7T REER
Shiny Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
BEEEARLA BB 5 10078 7T RERR
Guangdong Hoifu Petroleum Limited ~ PRC PRC RMB25,500,000 85 85 Trading in natural resources
BRIAZAMARLA hE M AR 25,500,007 ARERES
Hoifu Group Investment Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
IEEEREBRR EBRAES b 100 7T RERR
Madagascar Northern Petroleum BVI Madagascar US$100 100 100 Qil and gas exploration
Company Limited KERAHE SEMNAM 100%7T and production
SEMFLSRERERAR BARAARBRREE
Zhen Hua Company Limited Kenya Kenya KES100,000 60 60 Minerals exploration and
REERRA BB BRE 1000008 BB %L production
BERRREE
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. TEMB LT (£)
Proportion of
Country/ Issued and nominal value of
place of Principal fully paid issued share capital
incorporation place of share capital held by the Group
Name SMA L business BRTR rEERE Principal activities
2% A%/ % TEEEREY BRRE BRTRAEELS TEER
2017 2016
ZB-tf 2%
% %

Bt BAK

Hebei Panbao Zeolite Technology PRC PRC RMB55,000,000 55 55 Minerals exploration and
Company Limited H i AR 55,000,000 production
M EERARHBRAR BERARLE
Societe Hoteliere Tananarivienne Madagascar Madagascar MGA600,000,000 100 100 Property holding
SEMEM SE MM 600,000,000 NERE
SEmE
fMEDE
FRENEREGAREERAG  PRC PRC RMB22,000,000 100 100 Property investment
# i AR 22,000,000 NERE
The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson ARREERERGEEREBERAAR
Financial Group Limited and Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited. IERERIER AR AT e Ea AT
All other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly held by the EEMWNBRAR 2 ERBAARR R EERE
Company. Ao
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at RAFEERFRFAEMER - HBRF
end of the year or at any time during the year. BEAMHREECEKES -
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. XD B 2 B IR &
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—+FE —ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR ZZE 539,828 89,828
539,828 89,828
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a)  FEMWMI B R FIBRFK (Aita) 419,708 582,693
Other amounts receivable, E@%H&Eﬁm i@iﬁ RIB R IBE
prepayments and deposits 24,219 -
Bank balances (general accounts) WITEET (—REP) KRS
and cash 122,059 17,788
565,986 600,481
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to subsidiaries (note a) FET B AR E (Mita) 448,288 =
Other payables and accrued expenses H b B AR R R FEEH B A 2,446 11,696
Amount due to a Director (note b) et —REERIE (HiEDb) 39,718 61,819
Amount due to shareholders JE 1) A% 3R R IE - 2,369
490,452 75,884
Net current assets RBEEFE 75,534 524,597
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 615,362 614,425
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Corporate bonds NGITEE 17,831 -~
Borrowings BE 251,005 =
268,836 -
Net assets EEFE 346,526 614,425
Capital and reserves B #
Share capital A& A 252,128 252,128
Reserves (rote ¢) & (Bitc) 94,398 362,297
Total equity e 4258 346,526 614,425
The Company's statement of financial position was approved ARAIZMBRAETR T — \F=A
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March —+h Elﬁ %@?ﬁt/&&#%ﬂ% I B A
2018 and are signed on its behalf by: TR&E
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.s., J.P. Dr. Chui Say Hoe
HFrE¥ETess., IP it FiE L+
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE E
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

@

190

46. ZNF 2 BRREK (&)

it -
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and (a) U (MBARIZRBARER 2 RIRE
recoverable/(repayable) on demand. kigm, (fBIE) »
The amount due to a Director is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong (b) B —REEREAEIRT RKFRITARE
Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited (2016: Hong Kong Prime BREBMNE (ZE—AF  kFRITABES &
Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited) per annum and are repayable on BENR)BFTERNERKEE-
demand.
Movement in reserves () REZE)
Capital
Share  Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
RGEE BRERL EBEXBEOHFE ZitEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2016 RZFE—XF—H—H 365,406 372,031 4,120 (687,754) 53,803
Loss and total FEFBERZEXH
comprehensive azs
expenses for the year - - - (17,185) (17,185)
Share issued BEITRG 30,000 - - - 30,000
Share repurchase and AR5 B8 1= R FE 8
cancelled (6,859) = 1,467 (1,467) (6,859)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lz B B a8 8 )
not constituting a business W AKX —IBZ 5 302,538 - - - 302,538
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF+=A
and at 1 January 2017 =+—BEkR
—2—+t%—H—H 691,085 372,031 5,587 (706,406) 362,297
Loss and total FEBBEREZEXZ
comprehensive FEEet]
expenses for the year - - - (267,899) (267,899)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A
=+—H 691,085 372,031 5,587 (974,305) 94,398
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-_B=+—HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
= ZE-MNF —T-—hHFE TN —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAET FAET FExT

RESULTS B
Revenue W = 562,886 313,127 38,329 31,329 97,065
(Loss)/Profit before taxation B& & Al
(E518) /&2 F (22,268) (39,474) (15,247) (39,609) 94,478
Taxation IE 300 721 (12,262) 673 (31,896)
(Loss)/Profit for the year SEICE XK 2
from continuing FE (BE)/
operations s A (21,968) (38,753) (27,509) (38,936) 62,582
(Loss)/Profit for the year BARIEREER 2
from discontinued FE (BB,
operation i 7] S - (6,865) 42,081 (100,079)
(Loss)/Profit for the year & (B8) /&M (21,968) (38,753) (34,374) 3,145 (37,497)
Loss per share HREE
From continuing and SECEEBR
discontinued operations BRI EE
— Basic —EHK HK$(0.0147) HK$(0.0249) HK$(0.0225) HK$(0.0026) HK$0.0046
0.0147)% 7T (0.0249)7% 7T (0.0225)7% T (0.0026)/%7C  0.004638 T
From continuing operations 548 48 & ¥ 7%
— Basic —EHK HK$(0.0147) HK$(0.0249) HK$(0.0225) HK$(0.0027) HK$0.0246

(0.0147)87T (0.0249)% 7T (0.0225)%8 7T (0.0027)87C 0.02467% 7T
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As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+—8H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—ET—= —F—mF —ZE—HF ZT—RK —E—+tHF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT THET TET FER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Total assets BERHAE 453,562 584,023 892,438 1,350,270 1,655,970
Total liabilities afE8E (190,742) (218,875) (372,032) (445,863)  (797,611)
262,820 365,148 520,406 904,407 858,359
Equity attributable to RARVEB A
owners of the Company FEL R 290,912 320,285 380,104 771,836 836,492
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZE iz (28,092) 44,863 140,302 132,571 21,867
Total equity M iaRe 262,820 365,148 520,406 904,407 858,359
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